BOARD OF SELECTMEN
TUESDAY, OCOTBER 3, 2023
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA -7:00 P.M.
IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL - TOWN HALL
Call-In Number: 1-929-205-6099
Meeting ID: 814 3659 7837

Call to Order.
2. Public Comment.
3. Approval of Minutes:
a. September 5, 2023 — Regular Meeting.
b. September 14, 2023 — Special Meeting.
c. September 19, 2023 — Special A/P Meeting.
d. September 27, 2023 — Special Meeting.
4. Appointments:
a. Corenda Haugh: From Alternate to Full Member of Senior Commission with Term Ending 7/1/2027.
b. Patrice Niewinski: Appoint to Alternate for Senior Commission — Term Ending 7/1/2026.
5. Correspondence: Renaming of Squaw Cave at Bolton Notch Park.
6. New Business:
a. Schedule 3-Board Meeting (Not before 10/1 but no later than 11/15).
b. Bid Waiver for BCS Fire Panel Replacement. (Information Only).
7. Reports an Updates:
a. Properties and Facilities Admin. Report.
i. Temporary Building
ii. Connectivity Trail
iii. Library Patio
c. FY 24 Budget Report.
d. Budget Transfers.
e. A/P Report.
8.  First Selectman’s Report.
9. Administrative Officer’s Report:
a.  Monthly Report.
b. Other.
10. Adjournment.

Next A/P meeting to be scheduled for: Tuesday, October 17,2023 — Time?

—_—

To access the meeting audio in real time, please call 1-929-205-6099 and enter the Meeting ID: 814 3659 7837

Preference for public commenting will be given to pre-registrants. To pre-register for public comment please contact Kathy at 1-
860-649-8066 x6111 prior to 3 p.m. the day of the meeting. Audio recordings of each meeting are posted to the Town’s website
within seven days following the live event.



O

BOLTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN
REGULAR MEETING
7:00 PM, TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 5, 2023
BOLTON TOWN HALL, 222 BOLTON CENTER ROAD
In-Person and Virtual (Hybrid Format)

MINUTES

Board of Selectmen Members Present In-Person: First Selectman Pamela Sawyer, Deputy First
Selectman Robert Morra, Adam Teller
Board of Selectmen Members Present Via Zoom: Michael Eremita, Robert DePietro

Staff Present In-Person: Town Administrator James Rupert
Staff Present Via Zoom: Recording Secretary Linda H. McDonald

Others Present Via Zoom: Nick Lavigne (Community Voice Channel)
Others Present In-Person: Amanda Gordon, Jamie Freeman, William Freeman, Rich Hayes, Jim Loersch,

Carol Rady, Rodney Fournier, James Aldrich

1. Call to Order: P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was
recited.
2. Public Comment:

Carol Rady of 282 Hebron Road suggested the use of traffic mirrors for vehicles to see around
the corner and bend at the Hebron Road-Webster Lane intersection. She said there is a 40-inch
traffic mirror that will give 250 feet of view.

Jim Loersch of Brookfield Road said he is pressing for a new Town Hall as the current building is
obsolete. He said the town should build a new town hall at the old elementary school site. He
commented he would like to talk with someone on how the sidewalk on his property on Bolton
Center Road will be installed. He also expressed concern with the lack of sedimentation controls
regarding the drainage work on Bolton Center Road near Notch Road.

James Aldrich of 35 Hanover Farms Road commented on the need to increase the pay and
benefits for the First Selectman’s position for the future success and well-being of Bolton. He
read a prepared statement supporting his position.

3. Approval of Minutes:

3.a Regular Meeting Minutes - August 8, 2023:
The August 8, 2023 regular meeting minutes were amended as follows:
“5.c Some peopleresidents may have an issue paying the tax amount once a year but the rest
of the town residents shouldn’t have to fleatthese-people cover this expense.”

R. DePietro MOVED to approve the August 8, 2023 regular meeting minutes as amended. M.
Eremita SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

3.b Special A/P Meeting — August 22, 2023:

Bolton BOS 9/5/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page1of 5



4.b

5.b

5.c

5.d

R. DePietro MOVED to approve the August 22, 2023 special A/P meeting minutes as presented.
M. Eremita SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Appointments:

Diane DeNuzio: from Alternate to Full Member of Inland Wetlands Commission — term ending
7/1/2026:

R. Morra MOVED that the Board of Selectmen appoint Diane DeNuzio as a full member to the
Inland Wetlands Commission for the term ending July 1, 2026. M. Eremita SECONDED.

MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Patrice Carson: Appointment as Central Regional Tourism District Representative:

A. Teller MOVED that the Board of Selectmen appoint Patrice Carson as Central Regional
Tourism District Representative, term ending three years from appointment date. R. Morra
SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

New Business

Discussion on Sharing Troopers with Surrounding Towns:

P. Sawyer reported some conversation has been started and the town is working on seeing if
there is interest to share troopers.

Discussion on Ribbon Cutting/Open House for Temporary Building:

P. Sawyer said delivery is projected to be September 29th. She said the town is very pleased
with the efforts of the Town Administrator. J. Rupert updated the members on the progress
and said there has been a lot of support from the town crew as well as the Buildings and
Grounds department pulling this all together. He estimated it will take 3-4 weeks after delivery
to get the building fully operational.

Consider and Act on Bolton Living History Budget:

P. Sawyer reported there will be an encampment along with the dedication of living history signs
on October 7" and 8. She asked the board to consider spending up to $5,000 from Founders
Day fund to finish off any items still needed for the event.

R. Morra MOVED that the Board of Selectmen approve the allocation of up to $5,000 from the
Founders Day fund to be utilized by the Town Administrator for supporting the Founders Day
event. A. Teller SECONDED. Discussion followed. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Consider and Act on Bid Waiver for Connectivity Trail:

J. Rupert reported that the board has received a $17,000 proposal from Landie Construction to
complete the Connectivity Trail. He said the town Highway Foreman has asked the board to
consider Landie Construction to finish the trail. J. Rupert explained spring weather conditions
have put the Highway department further behind than had been anticipated. Other town
projects need to be completed before winter as well as normal everyday things that had been
put on hold while working on the trail. J. Rupert said there is money in the account to be able to
finish this and considers this to be a fair price. Discussion followed.

R. Morra MOVED the Board of Selectmen approve the bid waiver to allow Landie Construction

to complete the construction work on the Connectivity Trail between Notch Road and the
Library for the amount of $17,000. A. Teller SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Bolton BOS 9/5/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5



5.f

Bid Waiver from Board of Education:

The BOS received correspondence from Superintendent Heckt that, pursuant to the bid
ordinance, the BOE waived the bid for the purchase of Chromebooks and will purchase the
Chromebooks through the Interlocal Purchasing System for $25,415.

Discussion on Diversity Draft Statement:

R. Morra said he spent time going over the proclamation developed by the Diversity
Commission. He drafted a simplified statement that he proposed go before a subcommittee to
be looked at and a comparative analysis done.

R. Morra, M. Eremita and R. DePietro agreed to serve on a subcommittee to review the draft
statement and will report back to the full board at the October meeting.

Ongoing Business:

Stop Signs at Webster Lane:

P. Sawyer noted correspondence was received from Bill Freeman dated July 13, 2023 and John
Gasper dated August 30, 2023. She said there is correspondence from the Town Engineer
Joseph Dillon dated August 31, 2023, accompanied by a copy of prior correspondence to the
Administrative Officer dated November 2017.

J. Rupert said he spoke with J. Dillon over the phone and let him know the Board of Selectmen
felt that if he believed it was necessary, the town could bring in a traffic control engineer. J.
Rupert said J. Dillon looked at his notes and memo from 2017 and said, as his position as Town
Engineer is not going to change.

J. Rupert said the concern is the stop signs make the intersection safer because of limited
sightlines coming out of Webster Lane. J. Dillon said, if the town could maintain the sightlines, it
might be a different situation where the town might consider removing the stop signs. J. Rupert
explained the problem is that it appears to the town engineer that some of the area that the
town would have to maintain sightlines on is private property. In order to determine that, the
town would have to send a survey crew there to do some work and might have to obtain
easements from a private property owner.

A. Teller said he sympathized with the residents who have been here multiple times. He said,
looking at the 2017 information he sees sightlines recommended for 30, 35 and 40 miles per
hour. He realizes although the speed limit may be 25 mph, nobody thinks that anyone travels at
that speed on that road with or without stop signs. A. Teller, said from an engineering
standpoint, it is completely reasonable to install stop signs at that location and to expect that
they will improve the situation and safety of the intersection. He said he does not feel it is
appropriate for the board, in the face of J. Dillon’s new comment, to remove the stop signs, but
don’t do it until the town has cleared the sightline and made sure the town can continue to
maintain the cleared sightlines.

A. Teller said the BOS works as a lay board based on the information given to them by
professionals that work for them and that is the last word. He said it would be a substantial
expense to do a survey and hire a traffic consultant for one intersection and does not think it is
warranted for the board to do. He noted there are people on Webster Lane supporting the stop
signs. There are groups of people that want different things and the board cannot do anything

Bolton BOS 9/5/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 5



7.b

but resort to the professionals and their opinions. The board has an obligation to do things
based on what they are given by professionals.

M. Eremita expressed his opinion that the town has hired people and they have given the board
professional advice which basically is to leave the stops signs as is unless the town could
guarantee sightlines. He said if the board were to go against their paid experts, and knowing the
town could not in good faith say the town maintain those sightlines seven days a week, 24 hours
a day 365 days a year, and the town did remove those stop signs and something should occur,
the town would be liable for its actions.

R. DePietro said he agrees completely with the previous comments.

R. Morra commented he the only modification he would consider is making the intersection a
two-sign situation. He said coming out of Webster Lane you cannot look left or right and if traffic
is really moving, you have to nail it to get out of there safely. The worst visibility is coming from
the south, from Andover and he said that the stop sign has to stay there. You cannot move
safely forward without having that stop sign. He said the only one he would even consider
removing is the Hebron Road stop sign because that has a better line of sight. He said that
would go against everything the town engineer said.

P. Sawyer commented she did a ride-along in a town truck on a very snowy evening and noted it
was one very dangerous intersection that required, she believes, stopping from all directions
during bad weather.

No action was taken to change the current situation at the intersection. P. Sawyer noted if
there is any new future new information that comes before the board, the board has the ability
to bring a motion before the body and could act on it at that time.

Reports and Updates:

Properties and Facilities Report:

7.a.1 Temporary Building: This was previously reported on in agenda item 5.b.

7.b.2 Connectivity Trail: This was previously reported on in agenda item 5.d.

7.a.3 Library Patio:

P. Sawyer thanked the Hartford Foundation for the generous $10,000 grant and the town

buildings and grounds crew who have done an amazing job making sure this gets done well.

M. Eremita noted it was not just the grounds crew but also the highway department sharing
services and working together to get the job done.

R. Morra complimented the crews on the professional job they did.

P. Sawyer asked the Town Administrator to put something in the employee files of the two
crews, complimenting them on working together to get the job done.

Cyber Upgrades: Moving to (.Gov) Domain:

Bolton BOS 9/5/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5



P. Sawyer reported town has migrated from the bolton.org domain to the bolton.gov domain to
strengthen cyber security. J. Rupert added the process is going well and the public and staff
response to the change in service is positive.

7.c FY 24 Budget Report: ). Rupert reported there are no concerns at this point.

7d Budget Transfers: No action needed.

7.e A/P Report:
A. Teller MOVED that the Board of Selectmen accept the A/P report as presented. R. DePietro
SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

8. First Selectman’s Report: P. Sawyer reported on the school bus driver strikes in other towns
and noted school proceeded as normal today. She said the town is proceeding with the loan for
the fire truck. She reported the Library, Senior Center and Town Hall have been opened as
cooling centers during this heat wave. She said there was an accident on Bolton Center Road
today.

M. Eremita added the truck assembly is on schedule and should be in town no later than
Thanksgiving. After an inquiry from R. DePietro, P. Sawyer directed the Town Administrator to
ask the Fire Department to come up with a list of options of what to do with the old truck for
the board to review. J. Rupert suggested convening a meeting of the Facilities and Public Safety
subcommittee asking the Fire Chief to provide a report to that group so that group can come
back to the full board with a recommendation. P. Sawyer asked the Facilities and Public Safety
subcommittee to convene and report back to the full board within a month.

9. Administrative Officer’s Report

9.a Monthly Report: J. Rupert said there have been significant reports of invasive species at
Middle Bolton Lake. He noted the Town of Vernon has contracted with a company to provide
treatment for Middle Bolton Lake. He added some of the invasives have come into Lower
Bolton Lake and treatment and consultants may recommend treatment in the fall. Areas of
concern have been mapped out and notices have been posted for the Middle Bolton Lake
treatment.

9.b Other: P. Sawyer said the BOS has been asked by the State Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection (DEEP) to provide local input to a name change application for an
historic cave off Bolton Notch. She asked the members to review the name request application
materials for action, possibly at the September 19" A/P meeting.

Consensus of the members was to hold the next A/P meeting on Tuesday, September 19, 2023
at 4:00 p.m.

10. Adjournment: R. Morra MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 p.m. A. Teller SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Respectfully submitted by Linda H. McDonald Liuda #. 7eDonatd

Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for the approval of these minutes and any corrections

hereto.

Bolton BOS 9/5/23 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 5



€N

BOLTON BOARD OF SELECTMEN
SPECIAL MEETING
6:30 PM, THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2023
BOLTON TOWN HALL, 222 BOLTON CENTER ROAD
In-Person and Virtual (Hybrid Format)

MINUTES

Board of Selectmen Members Present In-Person: First Selectman Pamela Sawyer, Deputy First
Selectman Robert Morra, Adam Teller

Board of Selectmen Members Present Via Zoom: Michael Eremita (left meeting approximately 7:05
p.m.), Robert DePietro

Staff Present In-Person: Town Administrator James Rupert, Town Attorney Richard Barger
Staff Present Via Zoom: Recording Secretary Linda H. McDonald, Richie McKinnon, Building Official,
Patrice Carson, Director of Community Development

Others Present In-Person: Thomas Paggioli, Attorney Dorian Famigletti of Kahan, Kerensky, Capossela
LLP, Kristen Moore, Craig Moore, Priscilla Ward, Rodney Fournier, Amanda Gordon, Mary Terhune,
Allyson Coughlan, Kyle Paggioli, Noel Daigneault

1. Call to Order: P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.
2. Presentation of Information-Paggioli Farm /Town Easement Request:

P. Sawyer asked the audience to be cordial and speak politely.
A. Teller explained why this matter does not require or warrant an Executive Session.

R. Morra MOVED that the Board of Selectmen not go into Executive Session at this meeting and to
delete agenda item 4. A. Teller SECONDED. MOTION CARRIED 5:0:0.

Attorney Dorian Famigletti, representing Mr. Paggioli, explained why her client believes this is an
application for a driveway permit, not for a town easement and the issue lies at the end of the cul-de-
sac. Her client wishes to create a 12-foot-wide gravel driveway off of the end of the cul-de-sac Enrico
Road to his southerly property line. She said, by ordinance, the Board of Selectmen is the only board
that has the authority to act on a driveway permit.

T. Paggioli of 92 Birch Mountain Road said he wants to gain access to the back of the farm to better
control erosion. If he was to put in the 12-foot access road, he would interrupt the landscape as little as
he could.

A. Teller asked questions regarding the location of the proposed driveway, location of a swale and the
grade of the land.

R. DePietro asked if the applicant has a conservation plan. T. Paggioli responded he has one and will
provide it to the board. D. Famigletti said her client has no intention of using the property for anything
but farming.

Bolton BOS 9.14.23 Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3



Public Comment for those affected by Paggioli Farm/Town Easement Request Only:

Kristen Moore of 45 Enrico Road explained her husband in 2022 saw T. Paggioli on his property
clearing some downed trees. She said T. Paggioli told them he was planning to put up a house
for his daughter. She would like clarity on whether the purpose of the driveway would be for
agricultural use or to build a house. She noted plans show her driveway drops into the right-of-
way (r.o.w.) by three or four feet and said she was verbally told that that was only if the
subdivision continued. She concluded that this is a sticky situation for both sides.

Priscilla Ward of 44 Enrico Road, which abuts the r.o.w., said she bought her property two and
one-half years ago. She said she was surprised to learn of the proposed driveway and there is
very little unused space between her and Moore’s driveways. Upon reviewing all the paperwork
regarding this matter, she read the easement shall be for future extension of street to build new
homes. P. Ward said the Bolton Subdivision Regulations do not permit construction of a
driveway or other access through r.o.w., even on a temporary basis and do not authorize the
use of r.o.w. as a private driveway. She noted Mr. Paggioli has access to his property from Birch
Mountain Road, which he uses for tractor and recreation purposes. She concluded she
questions the necessity of a driveway in an area that should not be used for a driveway .

Adam Teller asked for copies of the abutters’ driveway permits and noted the as-built mentions
gravel driveways and would like to know when they were paved. He asked if there are any
issues with entering or exiting the driveways and the procedure for snow removal by the town.

J. Rupert commented he has never seen the BOS act on a driveway permit since he started with
the town in 2007.

A. Teller asked if anyone has looked at the driveway permits for the abutters and would the
slope of the proposed driveway be a problem. He noted the plans show an island at the end of
the cul-de-sac.

R. DePietro asked if the prior minutes where the BOS delegated to the Town Administrator to
approve the abutters’ driveways could be found.

Attorney Famigletti stated her client has no intention to put up a house. She said, if the BOS
needs more technical information on the driveway design, it will be provided. She said the
subdivision regulations do not apply to this matter.

Attorney Barger said the original deed governs the property and says r.o.w., not a public road,
and this is a classic 50-foot r.o.w. He said the current Town Charter says the BOS can delegate
this matter to town staff and questions whether this should be before the board.

Adam Teller said he reads the deed differently and the subdivision map shows that the spur is
the 50-foot r.o.w. reference. In the reference to Enrico on the subdivision map, he does not see
how that unimproved portion is separated out and described differently.

R. Morra said he does not have all the facts and would like to see the abutters’ driveway
permits.

Bolton BOS 9.14.23 Special Meeting Minutes Page2of 3



6.

Consider and Possible Action on Paggioli Farm/Town Easement Request:

R. Morra asked what is legally acceptable and said he needs more information to reach a
decision, including answers to technical issues like were the proper permits taken out.

R. DePietro questioned if this matter is a jurisdictional issue for the BOS and does the BOS have
purview over this issue in the first place.

Attorney Barger responded that is in dispute and the current Town Charter gives the BOS the
authority to delegate the issuance of driveway permits to town staff.

R. DePietro MOVED to recess this matter. R. Morra SECONDED.
R. DePietro said this is a very complex issue and the board needs to consider all the facts.

R. Morra said it is the goal to be fair and agrees all the facts are needed to make the decision
that is correct.

A. Teller noted the ordinance says the BOS has the authority to make this decision and there is
no documentation to show this was delegated to town staff. He asked if there are driveway
permits for the other properties and he would like to have a sense of the safety /snow issue for
these driveways. He asked if the neighbors would speak to each other to see if there is a
resolution to this and, if not, it would be the responsibility of the BOS.

P. Sawyer concurred it is appropriate to recess this meeting to be reconvened at a future date.
MOTION CARRIED 4:0:0.

J. Rupert asked for clarity of what additional information the board would like to see. The
members confirmed the following:
e As-built drawings for the road
e Driveway permits for the two existing driveways that come into the cul-de-sac if they
exist
e Comments from public safety professionals regarding snow removal ; where does the
snow go and all the things that might make that better if there is going to be some work
in that area.
e Is there a safety issue from the perspective of the Town Engineer and Public Works
Director?

Adjournment: R. Morra MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 8:04 p.m. A. Teller SECONDED.
MOTION CARRIED 4:0:0.

Respectfully submitted by Linda H. McDonald

Linda H. WeDonald

Please see the minutes of subsequent meetings for the approval of these minutes and any corrections

hereto.

Bolton BOS 9.14.23 Special Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3



TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN
SPECIAL A/P MEETING- MINUTES
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2023, 4:00 P.M.

The Board of Selectmen held a special A/P meeting on Tuesday, September 19, 2023, with first

selectman Pam Sawyer presiding. Also in attendance were selectmen Robert Morra, Bob
DePietro, Adam Teller, Mike Eremita, Jim Rupert, and Suellen Kamara.

1. Call to Order.
P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

2. Consider and Act on the A/P Report.

Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen accept the A/P as presented.

By: B. DiPietro. Seconded: R. Morra.
Voting: B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, A. Teller, R. Morra, and Mike Eremita. Against: None
Passed unanimously.

3. Budget Transfer Report.

J. Rupert stated that the reason for the transfer is that the Fire Marshal pays a portion of the bill
to TM because the office uses the software packet through TM for the reporting mechanism, and
the Fire Marshal portions come from Other Prof/Tech Svcs.

4. Consider and Act on the Grant for the Library.

Motion: I move that the Board of Selectmen authorize the submission of the Grant for the
Library.

By: Mike Eremita. Seconded: B. DePietro.
Voting: B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, A. Teller, R. Morra, and Mike Eremita. Against: None
Passed unanimously.

5. Adjournment.
The meeting was adjourned at 4:09 p.m.

By: R. Morra Seconded: B. DePietro.
Voting: B. DePietro, P. Sawyer, A. Teller, R. Morra, and Mike Eremita. Against: None
Passed unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,
Suellen Kamara.

Page 1



O
o}

TOWN OF BOLTON
BOARD OF SELECTMEN SPECIAL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, 2023 - 4:00. P.M.

PERSON BOLTON TOWN HALL & ZOOM
MINUTES

The Board of Selectmen held a special meeting on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 with First Selectman Pam Sawyer
presiding. Also, in attendance were selectmen R. DePietro, M. Eremita, A. Teller and Town Administrator J. Rupert.

1. Callto Order.
P. Sawyer called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

2. Consider and Act on Call for a Town Meeting Regarding the Teacher's Contract.
Motion: R. DePietro moved to approved the Call for a Special Town Meeting to be held on
Wednesday, October 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at Bolton Town Hall to consider and act on the
approval of the Teacher's Contract for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2027.

By: R. DePietro 2nd: M. Eremita

3. Vote:
Yes: R. DePietro, M. Eremita, A. Teller, P. Sawyer
No: None

Absent: R. Morra

4. Adjournment.
P. Sawyer adjourned the meeting at 4:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathy McCavanagh

Please see minutes of subsequent meetings for corrections to these minutes and any corrections hereto.



Reappointment

| wish to be reappointed as:

,/a full time member
an alternate

either as a full member or alternate

___ | do not wish to be re-appointed at this time

Board/Commission: B\~ Aoy Sone o~ C o SEON
Name: Coove ode 4k @rw%\\

Address: 40 T nMor Pond RA

Day Phone: _ Q- (o Y1~ ( OCHP,,,

Evening Phone:  Scevmn o

E-Mail:_ Clhaugh @ o Net

PLEASE RETURN TO: hr@boltonct.org or Selectmen’s Office,
222 Bolton Center Road

Bolton, CT 06043




TOWN OF BOLTON L\\ b
BOARD/COMMISSION
INTEREST FORM

Thank you for your interest in serving on a board or commission in our community. Volunteers play
a major role in our Town government. The Board of Selectmen or subcommittee will review the
information provided and may ask to meet with you to consider appointment.

Name: ’%;/‘f) (e /U} ol NS kll

Address: R/ /{ér/) v—o00 A 3— ve . 50 /oA

Telephone Number:_$60-L17- (22 5 Cell Number: _ 840 - 2 Y- 17¢ ¢
Email Address: Pebicioiachk! @G amail . Com

Political Affiliation: I’UL?L,/,OL"Ld’—L’Z 7=

[ am interested in serving on the (name of board/commission) Senior Citizen Comemn |

as a full member X and/ or alternate P

Please provide a brief statement as to why you are interested in serving on this board/commission.
wa l’l/-c v &N / A <o cs T M (< arnin 5 NS rce abot

/97@ [+ . 6&1Ytj Z Se N0 it 2e vl haoins
Liye i~ Be/Fv A £ pur o1y J<a g I roupld
: }’deu?— Ci 4 NifScan? ‘\/\/p AT

Please share any pertinent information on your background, education and experience as it relates to

the board/commission position.

—_—

[ am a  (retiredl yYurce fporofeilor wivh Ha ge~
- —— N ~
o & Cipericace . /] hawve o /Macfer s e Gre e  inN
< Ay atbon mj Ao My& o€ HHa c/ré«i/».qsg Could A b

helptoc (. .
Please add any additional information or comments.

Signed: W@' o '}j /7@/% oL Date: (/////515

If you have any questions, please contact the Selectman's Office.
Please complete this form and return to:
Selectman's Office
222 Bolton Center Road
Bolton, CT 06043

hr@boltonct.org
(860) 649-8066 x 6111




Dear Jim,

Kindly share this copy (below) of the most recent Conservation Commission draft minutes of
September 7, 2023 with Pam and the BoS.

Meghan Seremet, Connecticut State Geologist and Chairperson of the Connecticut Geographic
Names Authority was our special guest.

The Commission voted unanimously to rename the cave in Bolton Notch State Park to Wunnee-
Neetunah Cave.

Please feel free to ask any questions you may have.

Sincerely,

Rod Parlee, Chair
Bolton Conservation Commission

5.4 Consider Name Change for BNSP Historic Cave

Meghan Seremet, State Geologist spoke regarding the proposed name change. Anyone can
apply to rename a feature in Connecticut or any other state. The application to rename the BNSP
Historic Cave was sent to the Connecticut Geographic Naming Authority. The previous name of
the cave is the federally recognized name Squaw Cave. A geographic feature cannot be named
for a living person. The application requests a name change to Wunnee-Neetunah Cave.

B

Meghan researched the name with the Bolton Historical Society. Federal GIS maps do not show '

caves. The cave could be added to the Bolton town map.

There is no Native American member on the Naming Authority. Ms. Seremet asked if there
were any other name suggestions. R. Parlee thinks that renaming the cave is a good idea and if
the current name is derogatory, the name should be changed. M. Rivers feels that the full name
should be used. It speaks more of the intention of the name change and the initiative to do right
by the cave and its prior occupants. A. Bicknell agrees. The BOS should agree as well. P. Van
Dine suggested including the phonetic pronunciation of the name.

A. Bicknell asked if there would be some sort of placard at the cave. It is an Algonquin name
and he would like to include some of the history of the cave. There is more to the area than the
cave. Perhaps the name change should include the entire archeological area. Ms. Seremet asked
if the whole area is in BNSP.

A. Bicknell is concerned with the seep well. The well seems to have been made very precisely
and cleanly as opposed to the sheep enclosure near the well. The well is now under a protective
cover but people have been vandalizing the top edge of the well so it now has no integrity. Alan
showed a current picture of the well.



P. Van Dine asked if people would want the entire park changed to Wunnee-Neetunah Park. R.
Parlee spoke with Ray Hardy about having the cave put aside as a natural landmark. The BOS
was okay with that, but caves are not included in the historical landmark language. Renaming a
State Park would be more difficult. Ms. Seremet stated that would be under the auspices of the
CT DEEP. No one on the commission is opposed to the renaming of the cave. P. Van Dine
suggested using Judges Cave in New Haven as an example.

P. Van Dine made a motion stating that the BCC agrees with the renaming of the cave in the
BNSP as Wunnee-Neetunah Cave. M. Rivers seconded. The motion passed unanimously 5:0:0.
The vote results will be forwarded to the BOS, Ms. Seremet and the Connecticut Geographic

Naming Authority.

Ms Seremet has also looked into the name of Notch Pond. Lately the name is trending to Bolton
Notch Pond. A. Bicknell said that the Algonquin name of the area is Saqumsketuck (the pond at

the high rocks).

Rod shared a photo online of Ray Hardy in front of the cave as well as a photo of Ms. Seremet
standing in front of the cave. The comparison showed the possibility of change at the entrance.

Ms. Seremet shared the following links with the BCC.

https://edits.nationalmap.gov/apps/gaz-domestic/public/search/names

https://www.usgs.gov/us-board-on-geographic-names/guidance-name-proposals#4

Rod thanked Meghan for her participation in the meeting and for her tenacity in looking for the
cave. There was a lot of vegetative growth covering the area making the trailhead hard to find.
R. Parlee proposed adding signage and a blazed trail.

Bolton Conservation
Commission




Proposal Information

Wunnee-Neetunah Cave

Proposed name
Proposal type

Wunnee-Neetunah Cave
new name for unnamed feature

Current official name N/A
GNIS ID N/A
Proponent Cynthia-Corinion Nocton; Connecticut
Date proposed 6/15/2023
BGN case number 6079
Quarterly Review List 452
Feature Details
Primary coordinates n/a
Feature class cave

Name history

USGS primary topo map
State(s)

County(s)

Local jurisdiction(s)
Land ownership

BGN decisions
e None
Other Names

named for the Podunk woman Wunnee-Neetunah, who
according to legend lived in the cave with her Dutch
husband Peter Hagar in the 1600s

Rockville 1:24,000

Connecticut

Capitol Planning Region

Town of Bolton

Bolton Notch State Park

e Unpublished names: None found

e Published names:

o Sq Cave: many published and online sources
o Sg__ 'sHole: A New England Pattern: The History of Manchester, Connecticut,

1973

Case Summary

The new name Wunnee-Neetunah Cave is proposed for an unnamed cave in the Town of Bolton
in the Capitol Planning Region. The cave is not recorded in GNIS and has never been shown or

labeled on USGS maps. The name Sq Cave has been in long-term use.

The cave’s name appears to originate in the 1934 The Story of Wunnee-Neetunah, or The Life of
an Indian Princess of Connecticut by Mathia Spiess; the work is subtitled “A Tale of Truth.” The
Manchester Historical Society “presents the book . . . as a work of fiction, acknowledging the
inclusion of the facts available at the time, as well as mention of ‘Sq___ Cave’ on the ‘new
highway’ in Bolton, that is, Route 44, near Bolton Notch.”




In this legend, Wunnee-neetunah (also called Wunnee), was the daughter of a Podunk chief
named Tantonimoh. Her family adopted Peter Hagar, the cabin boy of a Dutch trader named
Captain May, after Peter fell in love with Wunnee and the Captain encouraged him to live
among the Podunks to learn their language and customs.

After a few years, Peter and Wunnee traveled to Boston with Wunnee’s mother to get married
but learned that there was a law against intermarriage. While they stayed outside the city,
Peter was seen gathering wood on the Sabbath and was arrested and whipped. Before he was
imprisoned, Wunnee and her mother rescued Peter and they fled back to Connecticut. Along
the way, they were attacked, presumably by Massachusetts colonists, and one died in the fight.
Peter was accused of killing the man. Peter and Wunnee did not return to Wunnee’s home but
were married in another Podunk community in Connecticut. Bailiffs from Boston were sent to
capture or kill Peter, but the Podunks warned Peter and Wunnee.

As they sought safety from the bailiffs and from other native groups attacking the Podunks,
Peter and Wunnee “removed their belongings farther east to a cave on the south side of

a rocky mountain known as Wiashqua-ompsk-ut [Wiashguagwumsuck].” After about 30 years,
Peter and Wunnee planned to move north to a Podunk settlement in an area without European
colonists or hostile native groups. However, a group of Mohegan men “found Peter, the
outlaw, living with his Indian wife in the cave ‘where the main trail goes through the Notch in
the mountain, on the east side of the Connecticut River.”” The Mohegans reported them to
local bailiffs who shot Peter. He reached the cave, and Wunnee was sent in after him. They
remined in the cave for several days and when the bailiffs went into the cave, the found it
empty. Wunnee had either snuck out the cave entrance with Peter’s body or found a deeper
passage in the cave through the mountain. Peter was reportedly buried in “the royal burying
ground. . . of the Podunk Tribe” and Wunnee was reportedly taken in by a Windsor couple and
was reportedly buried in Windsor. Spiess wrote:

The cavern home of Peter and Wunnee-neetunah now faces a newly constructed highway
at Bolton Notch and is still known as the sq___ cave.

The name as it came down to us seems to substantiate the belief that few white folks, if
any, ever knew that Peter lived there, for he was ever on the alert. His Indian wife was
known by many of the white squatters who had settled in the vicinity on land, without any
title and against the will of the original proprietors of Hartford.

The land on which the cave is located has been purchased by the State of Connecticut and is
now classed among the state parks.

The interior of the cave leads into a narrow neck which is now impassable. Tradition has it
that this narrow channel once led into a large chamber from which a passage extended to
an opening on the other side of the mountain, as we have already seen. . ..



The cave is visited by thousands of people annually.

It is unknown how much of the legend is truth or fiction. Other sources spell Wunnee-
neetunah’s name as Wunneeneetmah, including the 1938 Federal Writer's Project Connecticut
volume. The cave seems to also have been called Sq___’s Hole, cited in the 1973 A New
England Pattern: The History of Manchester, Connecticut and on an undated postcard that
appears to be from the early 1900s.

The proponent has been advised that if the name is approved, it would not be retrievable via
the GNIS public query. According to the GNIS FAQ Why are there no entries for caves in the

GNIS?:

GNIS does include caves, but the entries are not publicly available. In response to the 1988
National Cave Management Resources Act, Department of the Interior Regulation 43 (CFR
Subtitle A, Part 37) forbids the release of information regarding the location of all caves on
Federal lands. Currently, GNIS does not distinguish between features on Federal versus
non-Federal lands, so all features classified as “cave” are blocked from public access.

Stakeholder Input

Local government Town of Bolton
State Names Authority Connecticut
Federal Agency n/a

All federally recognized Tribes
contacted under Policy X
Connecticut Department of Energy &
Environmental Protection

Federally Recognized Tribes

Other



Domestic Geographic Name Proposal Form

The U.S. Board on Geographic Names (BGN) is responsible for standardizing the names of geographic features
within the 50 States and in other areas under the sovereignty of the United States. The BGN retains the legal
authority to promulgate all official names and locations of natural features (e.g. mountains, rivers, valleys), as well as
canals, channels, reservairs, and other select feature types.

This form is to propose a new name or name, spelling, or application change for a geographic feature for Federal
use. A proponent should carefully review the proposal prior to submission to ensure that it is consistent with the
BGN policies. Please note all fields with a red outline are required prior to submitting this form.

The proponent should also be aware that the entire proposal—including personal identifying information and any
associated correspondence—is in the public domain and may be made publicly available at any time.

OR 2. Send by mail to:

Submit 1. Email this form and supporting
Praposal: documentation to: BGNEXEC@usas.gov U.S. BGN Executive Secretary, Domestic Names
i.  Save PDFas ‘ST_GeographicName' 12201 Sunrise Valley Drive, MS-523

for example C0_BearCreek’

Contact Us:
BGNEXEC@usas.qov

Reston, VA 20192

ii.  Email Subject: ST_GeographicName

Please note that anything submitted by mail will dela yed.

Proposed Name:
Wunnee-Neetunah Cave

Is this name in current local use?
[y [=]n

What is the Feature Class?

Is this to change an existing name?

&Y Cn
If yes, please provide the official name and Feature [D
as it appears in the Geographic Names /nformation
System (GNIS).

GNIS Name: N/A

Cave Feature ID: /A
Location Basics mx]
Where is the feature? . General Location:
o A
Latitude: 41.79019 (38.94741) Restroot State: Connecticut
Longitude: 72 44644 (776859 County: ~ Tolland
For Linear Features (e.g. stream or valley): City/Town// Bolion
Township,
Mouth/Confluence Borough:

Latitude: (36.94747)

Longitude: (-77.36839)
Source/Headwater

Latitude: (38.94741)

Public Land Survey System:
Section(s), Township, Range, Meridian

Longitude: (-77.36839)



Feature Description

Physical shape, length, width, etc. (Maps can be submitted separately by email)
It is located in Bolton Notch State Park and can be seen from the road. It is a true cave, meaning it was
caused by water erosion of limestone. The cave consists of a ten foot chamber followed by a three foot
wide tunnel that continues for roughly forty feet before narrowing to a point that is unsafe to pass through
but continues for an unknown number of feet into the rock in a second chamber containing running water.
One side of the opening chamber has a slight ledge. The floor of the cave is soil.

Name Details

Name information:
Please provide The cave i§ known by the derogatory name of"Sq__ " Qave." According to local :
relevant information legend, which has gained popularity in recent years but is an old legend, a Dutch cabin
boy named Peter Hager was part of a trading party with the local Podunk Nation (now

about the proposed gy extinct). He fell in love with a local woman, Wunnee-Neetunah, and they got
name, such as married in the way of her nation. When Peter tried to return to his trading party, he was
origin, meaning, how rejected and they spent their exile together in this cave. Whether this legend is true or
long it has beenin - not is up for debate, but | think this story, the origin of the cave's derogatory name,
current use, as wel/  would be better remembered for the love story between Wunnee-Neetunah and Peter
Hager than for a slur that disrespects the memory of Wunnee-Neetunah. The cave's
physical size is small, and it doesn't appear in your dataset, so | am unsure if it has
been properly surveyed. However, the current name is commonly used in the area and
include why you in cave enthusiasts' circles, and the location is within a state park (Bolton Notch) so |

believe the feature think it should be renamed to fit the decision in 2022 that the word sq___is
. ; derogatory. The name has been in use since at least 1934.

requires a name or

name change and

why the proposed

name is appropriate.

Describe any

documents that you

will be subinitting

(separately by email)

to support your

proposal.

as current or
histarical
significance. Also



Please provide a list of supporting documentation, including any web links:

Examples: Published sources showing the proposed name or letters of support flocal government, historical
socrety, elc.).

https://enterthecaves.com/best-caves-in-connecticut/#2-boltons-squaw-cave
https://explorect.org/bolton-notch/

https://www.newspapers.com/newspage/247060874/

http://www.manchesterhistory.org/reprints/WunneeBook.pdf
https://worldofcaves.com/the-best-list-of-caves-in-connecticut/

Is the name commemorative? Does the name honor or refer to a person or persons? E]Y I—_—] N

Please note that the BGN will only accept proposals for names that are intended to honor a person or persons
deceased at least five years. The BGN will disapprove names that could be construed to honor living persons. The
person being honored should have had either (1) some direct or long-term association with the feature, or (2) have
made a significant contribution to the area, community, or State in which it is located; or (3) have outstanding
national or international recognition. The BGN discourages the use of an individual’s full name except to avord
ambiguity.

Ifyes, please provide the following:

Honoree’s Date of Birth: Unknown Honoree's Date of Death: 1640

Short biography and significance or association with the geographic feature: (/ist any additional honorees here)

Wunnee-Neetunah was a woman of the Podunk Nation living around 1640 in what is now Connecticut.
That year, she and a cabin boy named Peter Hager from a Dutch vessel, possibly Adriaen Block's ship
the Onrust, allegedly fell in love and married in the Podunk tradition, but were outcast from settler society
and lived inn this cave for a time while in exile. Some versions of the legend have them found and one or
both being injured badly by angry settlers and retreating into the cave until they succumb to their wounds,
in thheir lover's arms. Additionally, some versions of the legend have them found by the Podunk Nation
and buried properly after they are found dead.




©o

Memorandum

TO: Bolton Board of Selectmen
Jim Rupert, Town Administrative Officer

FR: Kiristin B. Heckt
Superintendent of Schools

DT: September 15,2023
RE: Bid Waiver

CC: Bolton Board of Education
Kusal Huynh, BPS Director of Business and Finance
Jill Collins, Town Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the bid ordinance, please be advised that the Bolton Board of Education waived the bid for the
purchase of the BCS Fire Panel replacement at the September 14, 2023 meeting. There is $40,000 in CAPA
monies for the BCS Fire Panel replacement. The purchase will be done through the State of Connecticut
Contracting Portal with TPC Systems for $36,951. TPC is the only vendor in Connecticut that provides EST
fire panels, which is our current system that will be upgraded so it will be compatible with the other

components.



e

L -abed [AARHAA [lejoQiayonoAdyidl  (Hoday Nd Lo:8L¢ €¢0¢/.2/60 :pajuld
:dnolg ¥o8yn
8e9eld HOTAVYL @ 43arvd
€€°G.L$ ‘[EJO 1 JOpUSA
€€'G.$ ‘|Bj013310AUl/Od
0 #X93Yyd
‘M'H - saiddng soueusjuiepy g Jiedey £¢0¢/9/6
€€G.$ 00000°00195°'000000°€0Ey €#0°G001 6560¢€ 0 HIMOIN 1IV1d J04 1134
:dnolg yoayn
06€CL 'NNOD 40 'dd090 ¥3HOvd
00°cecs ‘[ejoL IopusA
0ocee$ ‘|ejoLad10Au}/Od
0 #X03YD
‘UlWpY - $82IN8S Y03 ] Jayi0 €coe/elLie
oocees 00000°02¢S€S5°000000° 20 L¥0°S00L 96014 0 €2/EL/IZL-EL/6 SN1d SWOHONVHg
:dnoig yo8yH
ONI ‘ALLINLAY
1G'8LL$ ‘[ejo 1 Jopusp
1G8LLS ‘|ejo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #393Yyd
suag "|dw3 - 9oueinsu| sy €c0c/LLIe
1G'8LLS 00000°00125°000000° L¥L¥ L +0°S00 L 8229816 0 €202 100 - IONVYHNSNI 3417 NMOL
:dnolg yoay9H
3417 WIHLNY
229Lv$ ‘|ejo 1 Jopusp
(A VA% ‘|ej013310AUl/Od
0 #399YD
Ager] Bules|) asuelnsu| €c0oc/LLIe
[AACVAZ 00000'04£202°000000°0000°000°G00} 98682951 0 €¢0¢ 100 - vIla3an 33113y
:dnoio ¥o8yn
SSOHO ANTE WIHLNY
ajeq 9910AU| # Jopusp\ uonduosaq
junowy JUno2oyY 9210AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1ea, |edsiq
€202/50/01 0L} equinN yojegq JaydnoA

Bunsi jrejaq J8yonop

uojjog Jo umo ]|



4 :abed (AR HANA llel2@Jayonoadyidl Nd 10:8L:2 €20¢2/.2/60 -psjuld
“JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - [on4 BunpesH €202/81l/6
SZ6LLS 00000°01295°000000'66EY €¥0°S00L  €2/LL/6-6/8 LVIAH 0 1 L6G/# AYvydlT - 18n4 Buesy
1adQ Buip|ing umo] - |an4 Bunesy €c0oc/8lL/e
91'¢ol$ 00000°01295°000000°'66€Y'€¥0°'G00L  €2/11/6-6/8 LVY3IH 01l TL0L# TIVH NMOL - 1end Bunes
:dnouig yoayn
'dd092 SVO TVHNLYN LNDILOIANNOD
£8°€6€$ ‘|e}O] JOPUBA
£€8'¢6€$ '|B}O] ®210AUI/Od
0 #X03yd
“WWOo9 a4 - SUOHEDIUNWIWIOY €c0c/eL/8
80°051$ 00000°00€55°000000°€02y 2¥0°S00L €2/0€/6-1L/6 L2.L6# 0o I €202 Ld3S - L2/6# AL 1434 3414
JadQ Buip|ing umo]_ - suoleaIuNWWo? €coe/ee/6
£2/62/01-0¢/6
GEGLLS 00000°'00£55°000000°66EY'€¥0°G001 SLLS# 01l G2/S# LANYILNI dH
“1adQ Buiping umo] - suonesIUNWWOY £20¢/S/6
ge/LL/oL-cLie
ov'ecls 00000°00€55°000000°66€Y ' €#0°S00 1 CO6E#H 0 1l Z96E# LIANY3LNI a4
:dnoug ¥oayn
"LSYOWOD
GS¥8L$ ;|ej0] Jopusp
SS¥8L$ {|e}O] B2I0AU|/Od
0 F#X93YD
"1q17 - sleusyely Areigiy €20¢/8/6
GS¥8L$ 00000°'00%95°000000°L0S¥'G¥0°S00 L 69585994 L6Lov¥e | SM00g LL
:dnolg) 328y
6SClLL ‘00 Ldvaodd
6S°cr$ ‘|ejol Jopuap
65 €V$ :|B}O] @210AU|/Od
0 #X93UD
Jqr - sjeusyely Aeiqi £2¢0¢/9/6
65 €v$ 00000°'00%95°000000°L0S¥'S¥0°S00 L 128€25810SG 68Lov¥e L SM00d €
ajeq 8210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaq
Junowy Junosoy 92I0AU| "'ON Od ALD BWEeN JIWway Jopusy
¥202-£202 :l1ea, |edsid
€202/50/01 0L} |squinN ydjeg 1aydnop

Bupsi |1e3aq Joyonop

uojjog Jo umo|



€ :abed ¢c’'l'eecoe [ley2QJayonoAdyidl  Hoday Nd 10:8L2 €20¢//2/60 p3juld
00°09% ‘[BjoL Jopusp
00°09% ‘|ejo1 8910AU}/Od
0 #>934yD
‘wwo) all4 - s8a4 3 sanQ ¢€coc/cLie
vdl3dd3d 43IHD
00°09% 00000°00185°000000°€02t'2P0'S00 L - §3NaA €coe 01l ALNd3A 'VHIFdY3d N - S3NA dIHSY3FN3IN €202
:dnoJig yo8yH
2eesl ONI ‘NSSV 43IHO 3¥I4 1D
00'8.¢$ ‘|EJOL JOPUSA
008.¢$ ‘|E}OL3210AU|/Od
0 ‘#3934D
‘WWOY all - SAJIAISS [BUOISSBJ0.d 18YIO €20¢/9/6
JOSANIM
00'8/2$ 00000°'00+£5°000000°€02¥ Cc¥0°'S001 8¥609¢ ceeove L HLNOS "FYVOdHOD LV STVIISAH H3dNaN
:dnolg ¥oayH
IANLEVd INIDIAIN TYNOILYdNOD0 LNJILOINNOD
S LLLLS ‘lejo | Jopusp
SrLLLLS -[EJ013310AU|/Od
0 ‘#3934D
JadQ Bulp|ing umo] - |an4 Buyeay £20¢/8l/6
yreLLS 00000°01295°000000°'66€Y'€P0'G00L  €2/11/6-6/8 LV3IH 0o 0818# 9019 Muvd - [on4 Bunesay
JadQ Buipjing umo] - |an4 Bugesy €20¢/8L/6
9y L0L$ 00000°01295°000000°'66€Y'€¥0°'S00L €2/ 1/6-6/8 LVY3IH 0 ! 8vL1# 1SY - |ond Bunesy
"JadQ Bulpjing umo] - jan4 BunesH €¢02/8L/6
22°291% 00000°01295°000000°66€Y'€#0'S00L  €2/L1/6-6/8 LVYIH 01l 6906# 1d3A 3|4 - [an4 Bunesy
“1adQ Buipiing umoy - |an4 Bunesy €20c/8L/6
AN 445 00000°01¢95°000000°66€Y'€PO'S00L  €2/LL/6-6/8 LVYIH o1 7991# MNVL TIVINS DNNN - [ond Bunesy
“JadQ Buipjing umo] - [an4 Bunesy €20c/8L/6
91°'G05$ 00000°01295°000000°'66€Y'€F0'SO0L  €¢/L1/6-6/8 LVIH 01l 9G914# OINYN - 19n4 BuesH
adp Buipiing umoy - |an4 BunesH £20c/8L/6
60°26L$ 00000°01295°000000°66EY'€¥0°S00L  €2/L1/6-6/8 LVIH 0 ! LOPL# IDOVHVYD NMOL - [9n4 Bunesy
ajeq 9210AU| # lopuap uonduosaq
Junowy Juno2oy 82I0AU| "'ON Od ALD SWBN JWay Jopusp
Y202-€202 :ied\ |eosiq
€202/50/01 0L} :d3quinN ydjegq JayonoA

Bunsi jrejaq Joyonop

uojjog JO UMO |



14 :abed (AR NA A Ile1eiayonoAdyid!  podey Nd Lo:8L2 €20¢/L2/60 -pajuld
J1adQ Buipjing umol - Ayouioa|3 €20zc/02/6
€¢/0¢/6-12/8
10'85% 00000°'0¢295°000000°66€ €¥0°S001L LE0C# 0 LE0Z# SNOIT - Aoyos|g
1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayo1oa|g £202/02/6
€2/0¢/6-12/8
60¢vS$ 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°S001L 0c0oc# 0 020Z# ¥v3Y HOLON 86 - Aou1o8|g
1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayouos|g £20¢/02/6
€2/0¢/6-12/8
cL'Les 00000°02295°000000°'66€Y'€0°G00) V10C# 0 ¥10Z# TTVYH WNOD/TIVH NMOLL - Aiougoelg
JadQ Buipjing umo - Ajouo8|g €c0c/0c/e
€2/02/6-12/8
[Ad 4% 00000°02295'000000°'66EY €0°S001 100¢# 0 200Z# 1d3A 341 - Aouyos|g
:dnoig ¥oay)n
"‘AOHNOSY3INT
20'/8% -[eJOL JOpUBA
20'/8% ‘[ejo18210AU|/Od
0 #308Yyd
‘wwo?) all4 - saljddng juiep % sieday €c0c/ec/8
€e/eel8
6t°02$ 00000°00195°000000°€02¥'20'S00 L LyCLL# 100V 0 311 379vD ® SHIANILSYA
‘wwo? ail4 - sanddng juiep 3 siiedey €20e/8L/8
€2/8L/8
€6'99% 00000°00195°000000°€02¥'20°S00) LyCLL# 100V 0 SMIHOS ? SHIANILSVH
:dnolg y09yH
FHVYMAUYH INTVA INYL ANVION3T
61°209°C% ‘|e}o Jopuaa
61°209'2% -|ejo 1 ®010AU|/Od
0 #303UD
‘MH - auljoses % |9saig €c0c/EL6
61°209'C% 00000°'09295°000000°'€0EY €¥0°G00L NML S6SLE0L 0 IO ¥3d $7£286°2$ @ VO 09°288 - SYO
:dnolig yo8yn
ADHIANT H3IAIY LSV
aje 82I0AU| # 10pUBA uonduoseq
unowy JUNO22Y 9210AU| "ON Od ALD awep JIway Jopusp
Y202-€20C :Jea, |edsiq
£€202/50/01 L0L} :squinpN yojeg Jayonop

Bunsi |1e3ag 18yonop

uojjog JO UMO |



S :abed lielo@Jaydnopdyidl  poday Nd 10:8l:2  €202//2/60 :Pajuld
6EYEL ONI "OD A1ddNS JILVINTHIL
[AWAR A £ ‘[0 L JOpUSA
FA AR 4 ‘[ejo L 8210AUl/Od
0 ‘#X994D
1adQ Buipjing umo] - Ao1308|3 €20¢/02/6
£¢/0¢/6-1¢/8
.9'¢ecs 00000°02295°000000°66EY'€¥0°S001L 8606# 8606# SLHYNOD SINNIL - Ajouo8|3
JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ayouos|g €¢02/0¢/6
€2/02/6-12/8
26'vv$ 00000°02295°000000'66EY €¥0°S00) YE09# ¥€09# Q3HS dO-19 - Aouos|
1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayoios|g €c0c/ivLie
€CIvLi6-SL/I8
00¢cL$ 00000°02295°000000°66EY €¥0°G001L PE0S# ¥€0G# WYYH 39AIY HOIH - Aouyos|3
“JjadQ Buipjing umo] - Ayouyoslg €c0c/L2/6
' €¢/lel6-¢ci8
VWALAS 00000°'02295°'000000°66€Y €¥0'S00} LLOV# LLOV# MHYd MDYy TH - Aoupos|g
1adQ Bulpjing umo] - AyoLoa|g €202/02/6
€¢/0¢/6-12/8
96'v6¢$ 00000°02295°000000'66EY €¥0°S001 6907# 690F# 131471V - Aiouoe|3
1ado Buipjing umo] - Ayouos|g €20¢/02/6
€¢/0¢/6-12/8
99°02% 00000°02295°000000°66EY' €0°S001L 6C0v# 620t# 4Hg - Aouoe|g
"JadO Buipjing umo] - Ayouoa|g £20¢/02/6
£2/02/6-12/8
6166.% 00000°02295°000000°66€Y €¥0°S00 L 260¢H# 2602# OWHN - Aiouyo9|3
JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ajouos|3 €20¢/02/6
€¢/0¢/6-12/8
91'68$ 00000°02295°000000'66EY €¥0°S001) 980¢C# 9802# 1SY - Aiouosg|3
1ado Buipjing umo]. - Ayoioe|3 £202/02/6
€2/0¢2/6-12/8
00'vv$ 00000°02295°000000'66EY'€¥0°S00 1 SL0C# G/0Z# SSS HOLON 86 - Ayou3o3|3
sado Buipjing umo] - Ajouyoa|g €20¢/0¢/6
€2/0¢/6-12/8
80'v¥$ 00000°02295°000000'66EY €¥0°G001 GS0C# GG0Z# 093Zv9 - Aouoe|g
JadQ Bulpjing umo] - Ayoioa|g €202/0¢/6
€¢/0¢/6-12/8
06'62.% 00000°'02295°000000°'66EY €0°'S00L SYOC# Sr0Z# Advddl - Aous|g
ajeq 9210AU| # JOpUBA uonduasaqg
Junowy JUNoooY 8010AU| ALD awWeN JWay Jopusp
¥202-€20C :1es) |edsl
£€202/50/01 L0LL ‘JdqWnN ydjeg Joyonop

Bunsi [1e3aq 49yanop

uojjog Jo Uumo|



9 :abed c¢c'l'eeoe [le}o@seyonoAdyid)  (Hoday Nd L0:8L:¢ €¢0¢/.2/60 -pajuld
:dnolg yoayn
ONI TOHLNOD 2iddvdl 304049
9G°cLes ‘[ejo] JOpuap
9G'¢eles ‘[ejo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #303YD
“JadQ Buip|ing umo] - suopedUNWWoY €2¢0¢c/.L/6
9s¢eles 00000°00€£55°000000°66EY'€¥0°'G00L €2/9/01-L/6 9C69# 0 1l 9¢69# ANOHJ3TAL dH
:dnoig }oayn
"H3ILNOYA
GS'¥/0'2$ ‘|e10] JOPUBA
GG'v20'/$ :|e}01 8210AUL/Od
0 #303YyD
Ol}epuno4 pJojlueH-I0JOBHUOY -UOHONASUOD) Oljed €20e/se/ L
€2/Sz/. pajep ajonb Jad
SS'v/0'L% 00000°00545°000000°LOSY'S¥0°€982 0491 gceove | se Aueiqi| sy} je oljed 8}210U09 ||elsul 0} JOge| PUE S|euaje|y
:dnolig yoayH
SpeSl 0711 "AYNOSYIN 311QHVO MNYYAS
¥0°001'62$ -[BJOL JOpUBA
¥0°001'62% :|ejo 1 8010AU|/Od
0 #308YD
‘wwio) all4 - Aiddng = e Aunsag/aid £€20¢/8¢/8
NIVTO IONVHNSNI
2.L50L$ 00000°20€¥S°000000°€02Y 20°'S001) ¥6Z1LLANILO L0S0ve | d3d ¥€1 XONYL 1Ld3d 34Id OL SHIVd3d AQod
Jleday ¥oni] ali4 - Wie|D aoueInsuy| €20¢/L/8
NIV1O IONVANSNI
€2'¥86'9¢$ 09000°0£202°000000°0000°000°G00} 9€CLLANILD 10s0ve | d3d ¥€1 XMONYL 1d3d 34Id OL SHIVd3d AQod
‘wwo) alld - Aiddng % “Julepy Aunosg a4 €202/./8
NIVTO IONVANSNI
60°0L0°L$ 00000°20€¥S°000000°€0Z¥ 20°G00} 9E€CLLIANILD 10S0v¥¢ | d3d ¥€L MONYL Ld3A 34Id OL SHIVd3Id Adog
aoueInsu| a|gonpag €20c/LI8
‘ NIV1O IONVHNSNI
00°000°L$ 00000°L0255°000000°2S LY L¥0°S00L 9€CLLANILD 20s0ve | d3d ¥€1 MONYL 1d3d 34Id OL SHIVd3d AQOo4d
:dnoig 33y
ajeq 8210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaqg
junowy Junoooy 9210AU| "ON Od ALD aweN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€20C :Jes\ |edsiq
€202/50/0L 0Ll ‘JdquinN ydjegq Jayonop

Bunsi [1e32@ 48YaNoA

uojjog JO uMo|



L :abed ¢e’'l'eeoe IIel2aJayONOAdYIdl  Hoday Nd 10:8L:C €20¢/L2/60 :pajulid

:dnouo oayn
ANVIONI M3N - Q4VATIIH
00°06L°L$ ‘|ejol Jopusp
00°061°L$ :|ejo | 8910AU|/Od
0 ‘#X934D
wa)sAg juswabeueyy ABiaul - sapijqer] JoYO €20oc/L/6
SAAYHOAN
INFLSAS INIFWNIDVYNVYIN ONIATING/WILSAS
00°06L'L$ 00000°€5/25¢°000000°056¥ ' 6¥0°Z8Y¢E LGEVY 1250ve | LNIWIOVNVYIN ADHINT SOd 40 %01
:dnouo o8y
ANVYAWNOD ZN3T '4'H
olL'ves'L$ ‘[ejoL Jopusp
0C'v65% -|ejo1@d10Au]/Od
0 ‘#X034yD
‘MH - salddng aoueuajule|y 3 Jieday €c0c/cLie
02 ¥65$ 00000°00}+95°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00 L /88E¥9L SvS0¥e | SNId 1709 3A3 ¥ 8 HOLV /M SMOOH ONITS ¥
:dnoig ¥oayn
96'6¢6% -|ejo13d10AU}/Od
0 ‘#X03yD
‘MH - saiddng soueusyuie|y g Jieday £¢0¢2/9/6
GG'€69% 00000°00195°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L 96vEY9.L 06¥0vC | SONILLI4 '® ISOH JIMNVYHAAH
‘MH - salddng soueusjurepy g Jieday €20¢/9/6
Ly oees 00000°00195°000000°€0EY €¥0°G00) 8.YEVIL 06¥0vC | SONILLI4 ® ISOH JIMNVYHAAH
:dnolio 309y
ONI OOT¥YN3D
G/ 8¥S'L$ ‘lejo | lopusp
G/ 8¥S'LS :|e}01 8210AU}/Od
0 ‘#X93Yyd
S30INISS 'Joid JeyiO-juelD AJIAnOBuUOD AJunwwo) €coce/L/e
. . €2/ve/8-12/8 L0Arodd
S.'8¥S'L$ §60S0°00¥£5°000000°016¥'6¥0'2282 /8¢ orsove | AVMMNTIVM ONIYNA SFDINGAS TOHMLNOD Jl44vdL
2)e( 90I0AU| # Jopuap uonduosaq
junowy Junoooy 9010AU| "ON Od ALD BWeN JIWaY Jopusp
Y202-€20C :1edA |edslq
£€202/50/01 L0l :ilsquinN yodjeg Jaydsnop m—‘:”—w_l_ [1eyeg 1°2ydnNoA

uo}jog JO UMO |



8 :obed [AARYA4 Ilej2aJaydnopdyidl  Hoday Ad 10:8L:¢ €¢0¢/L2/60 pajuld

0 #308yd
‘M'H - saljddng aoueusjuie|y g Jiedey €20¢/8/6
HIMON
61°0€8'L$ 00000°00195°000000°€0EY €+0°G001} ECLOPAI 920S0¥C | 3dISAVOY HOd S3ITddNS ® dNNd JINMNVYHAAH
:dnoug ¥oayn
2¢68¢d ONI ‘LNINdINDIT ? HOLOVHL NHVYM
0062L$ ‘[EJOL JOpUaA
00'seLs ‘|e}0 1 8210AU|/Od
0 ‘#3984
“JelqIT - S90IAI9S [BUOISS9J0Id 190 £20¢/ce/6
006¢L$ 00000°00%€£5°000000°LOSY'G¥0°S00L I ANA] 0 ! €2/12/6 NOISSNJOSIa Y009 L
:dnolo 3oy
I43TVA NHOr
000G1$ ‘|ejo Jopusp
00°0St$ :|ejo ®210AU[/Od
0 #308YyD
junoady ARjiqer 9eoy3089 €c0c/Lcle
d0dd3 NI TVIONVYNIL 319v1Iin03
00°051$ 00000°29202°000000°0000°000°G00F  HONNM ADVHL 0 1l OL IN3S NOILNEIYLINOD HONNM ADVHL - aeoy304d
:dnolg yo8yn
cosovg Auedwo) souensu| uuepy soeIOH
82'88¢C'L$ '|e101 JOPUBA
0,260'L$ ‘|E}0 1 8310AU|/Od
0 ‘#393YD
“JadQ Buipjing umo] - saiiddng €ecoc/LL/e
0,260'1$ 00000°00+95°000000°66EY €#0°S00} 2GS/€2509 6SY0¥C | S3ITddNS ONINV3TO
:dnoug yoayn
85°G61L$ :|e101 8210AU|/0Od
0 #398YD
ad Buiping umo] - saiddng €20¢/8L/6
85'G61$ 00000°001+95°000000°66€Y €#0°S00} 8029¥2S09 0 ! S3NddNS DNINVITO
a)eq 9010AU| # Jopuap uonduosaq
junowy JunoooYy 90I0AU| 'ON Od ALD BWEN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1esA |edsly
£€202/50/0} L0V} :1QUINN Ydjeg J3YINoA Bunsi |1ejeq 19YyonoA

uo}|og JO UMO |



6 -abed ¢c’l'ecoe [Ie}2QIayonoAdyidl  :Hoday Nd L0:8L:2 €20¢//2/60 :psjuld
8920¥'6% ‘|eJo18210AU|/Od
0 #934D
souelnsu| Ayiliqer g Auadoud €coe/LioL
ININTIVLSNI
00°¢Sr$ 00000°'00255°000000°2SL¥ L¥0'S00L 102¥02.L 01l PuUgZ - ¥2/L1L-€2/L/L ADITO0d HLIVAH 8 LN3AIOJV
aoueinsu| Ajiger g Auadold €202/8/6
ININTIVLSNI
00°¢sv$ 00000°002SS°000000° LG LY L¥0°S00 L ,02e0c2L o I 1St - ve/biZ-€2/L L ADINOd HLV3H ® LN3AI0JV
soueinsu| Ayjigert @ Auadold €2¢0¢/ve/8
dITIVHL 40 NOIL3T3A ® INTVA dITFHDV
(25661%) 00000°002S5°000000°2SL¥ L¥0'S00L L0cv69Yy 0l 40 INJWANINY - ANNJTH ADIT0d INIEVIN ANVINI
aouelnsu| Ayiger @ Auadoid €coce/L/ioL
G/°200'L$ 00000°'002¢S5°000000°LGL¥" L¥#0°S00L L02¥0vL 01l INIWTIVLSNI PUZ - ¥2/1/2-€2/LIL ADIT0d VT11349NN
souelinsu| AyjqerT @ Auadold €¢0¢/1L/01
ININTIVLSNI
G.119'c$ 00000°002S5°000000°2LSL¥ LYO°S00L 10¢66¢| 0 1l pug - ¥2/1/2-€2/L/L ADITOd IANIEVIN ANVINI
aoueinsu| Ajjiqer @ Apadold €20¢/1L/0L
INIWNTIVLSNI
G/'180'G$ 00000°00255°000000° LSy L¥0'S00L L0Cy6EL 01l puUgZ - ¥e/L/2-€2/LIL ADITOd IVIOHININOD
:dnolo ooy
ONI ‘ANVdINOD 2 TIANOIN
€8'v1LES :|EjOL JOpusA
€8'vLeS ‘|B}O1 B2I0AU/Od
0 #>08yD
‘wwoy ali4 - saddng jesipspy €20¢/S/6
0z'e$ 00000°00695°000000°€0CY 2+0°S001L /¥88568S geeore L 30INIA AVMAEIY TVIONAYVYHJOSYN
‘wwo? all4 - salddng [eaipapy €202/S/6
NVOHVN
® HOLVLIOSNSIY ‘I39NVYD 1IdNd/M LHOITNId
€9'LLES 00000'00695°000000°€0ZY 20°G00 ) €919168G geeore L YINNNYO TVSYN :SWFLI TvDIdIN SNOIEVA
:dnoig yo9yn
VIIDHNS 1vOIAIN NOSSINON
67°0£8'L$ ‘lejo] Jopusp
670e8'1$ [B}01 8010AU|/Od
ajeq 9910AU| # lopusp uonduosssg
unowy Uno2oy 2210AU| ‘ON Od ALD SlWeN JIWay Jopusp
V202-€202 :J1edA |edsiq
€202/50/0L L0l :l3qunN yojeg Jaysnop

Bunsi |1e38q 48Yy9NoA

uojjog JO umo|



oL :abed c¢el'eeoe IIe}2QJaydnoAdyids  poday Nd 10:8L:2 €¢0¢/.2/60 -pajuld
sue poopn [aIne €202/L2/6
NOILO3dSNI
0£'96.°1$ 00000°000SC'SYLSLY LSLY LY0 8862 €vG.6 oI ‘NOISIAIAgNS NTAOOM T3dNVYT €000-5901
2-22-1d/peoy JaAly doH L/Z €c0c/Le/6
AQNLS
9¢°LLYS 00000°000S29€ELSLY LSLY L¥0'886¢C 8¢S.6 0o I ‘3d0OLS FONIINIANOD A H3IAIY dOH L2 1S00-8960
“UILIPY - S82IAJ8S Y29 /[euoissajold €coc/Le/e
NOIS3a
€8°'70€'1$ 00000°00€€£S°000000°20L¥ L ¥0'S00L S TASYA] 0 I -INVHO ALIAILDOINNOD ALINNNINOD 6£00-£960
‘ulupy - s8JIAI8S Yo | /|euolssalold €c0oc/Le/6
€0°0/$ 00000°00€£5°000000°L0LY L¥0°S00L ¥¢G.6 oI NOISNVYdX3 T1VH NMOL ‘301440 SINVINLDOFT3S
“UILIPY - SIIAISS Y23 | /leuoissajold £202/12/6
96°106$ 00000°00€€5°000000°20L¥ L¥0'S00L [HAYA] 0 I NOILVLINSNOD TVHIANIO 301440 SINVINLOTT3S
:dnolig yoayn
clLecl "ONI “O0SSY ® NOSEOOVT 1 NVHLYN
98'602$ -[eJO L JOpUSA
98'60¢$ :|e}0 1 3210AU|/Od
0 #3934D
-1adQ Buipjing umo] - saiddng £2¢0¢/S¢/6
ININJINOI
98'602% 00000°00195°000000°'66€Y €+0°S001 6672EE-£690 areove L ® SMONYL H04 S3INddNS OSIN 2 SY3LTI4
:dnoig ¥oayn
S14Vd 01NV VdvN
81°2S$ :|eJoL Jopuap
81°25$ -[BJ013010AU|/Od
0 #Xo3Yyd
1917 - sleusie Aeiqi XA AIA NS
8¥'2S$ 00000°'00%95°000000° LOSY'G¥0°S00 L 26¥SvEY0S ¢6love | sanac
:dnolg yoayn
€621 3dVL1 LSIMAIN
8920v'6$ ‘|EJOL JOpuUsSA
aje( 8210AU| # Jopuap uonduosaeq
junowy Juno2oYy 2010AU| "ON Od ALD SWEeN JIWay JOpusp
¥202-€20C :1edA |edsiq
€202/50/01 L0l ‘squinN ydjeg 18ydnop

Bunsi |1ejoq Jayanop

uojjog Jo umo|



L -abed celeeoe lleje@iayonondyid!  poday INd L0:8L:2 €¢0¢/L2/60 ‘pajuld
:dnolo o8y
8L16€9 "ONI ‘SNYvd 3dIL S.313d
00°56¢£'c$ ‘[ejo] Jopusp
00'G6E'CS$ ‘[ej0 1 3210AU|/Od
0 #303YD
s pue’ @ 'pling - AIaG Yo9| /|euolssajold €¢0¢/LLI6
00°6.2'2$ 00000°00€€S°000000°LSLY L¥0'S00L €2/LLI6 I 0 §¢ce €2/L1/6-11/6 SADINGTS ONILTNSNOD ATINOH
as() pueT B 'ping - Alag Yoa] /leuoissajold €coce/lLi6
0002L'L$ 00000°00€€S°000000°LSL¥ L¥0'S00L €¢/0L/6 AIM 0 9l €¢/0L/6-7/6 STADINETS DONILTNSNOD ATINOH
:dnolo ¥y
NOSHVYO 130141vd
9z'¢6E'9L$ )|e10] JOpusp
9z'€6£'91$ ‘|EJOL3010AU|/Od
0 #393YD
"UWPY - SBDIAISS |23 | /[BUOISSS)0Id €coe/elLie
¥20c2-€20c
00°00}'z$ 00000°00€€5°000000°L0LY L¥#0°S001 L0¥9L 0o I S3DINGZS ANOTD FLVAIYC ® LHOddNS AIDOVNVYIN
‘UIWPY - SBJIAIBS U8 | /|BUOISS}0Id €coc/elLie
00°008'6$ 00000°00€€S5'000000°20L¥ L¥0°G00L 6.E91 0 1 NOILVIAINIY ALIHMOIYd-HDIH
umo} - sasuadxa pledaid €coc/LL/6
9Z'v99% 00000°50081°000000°0000°000°S00 cLE9L 01l SWNINTYd SSANISNG G9€ 140SOHDIN €
‘UIWIPY - S82IAISS Y93 Jayi0 €e0oc/LiL
¥20¢-€20¢ SADINYIS ALIYNDO3S
00'628'c$ 00000°025€S°000000° 207" L¥0°S00 L 9v.SlL 0o I ® STJINYIS ANOTD FLVAIM ‘1H0ddNS AIDVNYIN
:dnoug yoayn
ONI ‘LHOISNI SNAON
£€°202'61$ ‘[ejol Jopusp
€€'202'61$ -[Bjo 1 8d10Aul/Od
0 #X93yd
“UIWPY - S33IAIBS Yo | /[euoissaold €coe/Le/e
. LN3INJOT13AIA NOISTA 8 NOISIA NITIHd
G8'969'V1L$ 00000°00€€S5°000000°20L¥ L ¥0'S00 L 6956 0 1l ‘AIAENS INDISTAA MTVAIAIS dIDLO1 L000-252)
a}e(] 9010AU| # lopuap uondiiosaq
unowy 1unoooYy 9010AU| "ON Od ALD aWeN JIWay Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1ed\ |edslq
€202/50/01 L0L} squnp yojeg J8yonoAp

Bunsi j1e3aq Joyonop

uojjog Jo umo|



Zl :abed ¢c'l'ecoe IIB}2QJ3YINOAdYId!  Hodey Nd L0:8lL¢ €¢02/L2/60 -pajulld
:dnolig) YoayH
022611 au| ‘salbojouyoa] Ajunosg
VXA 1A ;|ejol Jopusp
12°9¢2$ ‘[BJ013310AU/Od
0 ‘#X994D
‘MH - S82IA18G soueUS)Ule) 3 siieday €coc/LLie
L29ge$ 00000'00€¥S°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L 1652526 Lesove L FDINYES HANVITO S1yvd
:dnoug ¥y
9e9lL1 "ONI ‘SIW3LSAS NITFTM -ALI4VS
00°009'c$ ‘[ejo Iopusp
00°009°2$ -|Bjo13d10AU}/Od
0 #393YD
‘wwoy all4 - Bulules] [euopesnp3 ‘joid €20¢/SL/8
SY3ILINIW ad
00°009'2$ 00000°'002£5°000000°€02¥ 205001 Liiee 65e0vC | 8 - SSVY'10 NOILVYOId1X3 €2/82/0} HO4 NOILVHLSIODIAY
:dnouo ¥oayn
ONI "MOVr 0 s34
00'96$ -[BJO1 JOpusp
00'96% ‘|B}01 8210AU[/Od
0 #9940
1adQ Buiping umo] - sayiddng €coe/L/L
00'96$ 00000°00195°000000°66EY €¥0°G001 09€LY o ! S1IM "IYd3d IATVA NVOTIS
:dnolg yoayn
[A AN "ONI 'ONILVAH 8 ONIGWNTd 4 9 o
2. '6v8% ‘|E}OL JOpUBA
2L 6v8% ‘|ejo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #393YD
‘MH - S921A9S adueuajuIBl 3 Slieday €202/S/6
A0NYL dNMOId
cL'6v8% 00000°'00£¥5°000000°€0EY €#0°S00 L yS0v8L S0sove | 39003a 8102 NO JJINYIS ® SIHIL M3AN 40 13S
ajeq a210AU| # lopuap uonduosaq
junowy JunoooYy 8210AU| "ON Od ALD BWeN JIWaY JOpuap
¥202-€202 :1ed,\ |edsiq
£202/50/01 0Ll 8quinn yodjegq 18YydnoA

Bunsi j1e3oQg 19yonop

uo}jog JO UMO |



€l :abed ¢c’l’'eecoe [ley2giayonondyids  poday Nd L0:8L:C €20¢/.2/60 -p3juLd
00°000'2$ ‘|ejo| Jopusp
00°000'2$ ‘|ejo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 ‘#393YD
"WWoY all4 - SUOHEDIUNWWOY) €c0c/s/8
00°000'2$ 00000°00€55°000000°€02¥ 20'S00 L 6205 ¥9€0ve FHVYMLJ0S XVH1Sd +202-€202
:dnoug 3oy
ONI NOILVYINOLNY NOILV1S
68'€9% -[ejo Iopusp
68'¢9% ‘|ejo 1 8010AU|/Od
0 #X93yd
umo] - ajqeded sjunoodoy €¢0c/0c/L
SHIASYH3 ¥ STION3d
68°ct$ 00000°00202°000000°0000°000°5001 96..¥clce ‘SY3AT04 - ¥3AYO ATddNS 321440 FONVYNIH €2A-
umo] - sjqefed sjunosoy €coc/ieLl/L
dYAN31vo
00°02$ 00000°'00202°000000°0000°000°G00 1} 88/¥080C¢ MS3A - 43AH0 ATddNS 1440 HHITO NMOL €TAH
:dnoug) yoayn
NVd 1Id349D S31dV1S
61651% ‘[ejo] Jopusp
61 65L$ ‘|01 ®010AUI/Od
0 ‘#393YD
‘MH - lleday peoy €20¢/S/6
61°65L% 00000°00525°000000°€0EY €¥0°S001L 100-€G8.FLYEL d33S SSYH9O B HOTNIN AVH
:dnoig yo9yn
A1ddNS 3dVIOSANV1 INOILIS
00°025's$ ‘|ejo] IOpusp
00°025'S$ :|e10] 8210AU|/Od
0 #3%8yD
"JadQ "pling UMO] - S82IAIBS “JulB) B Jiedey €2c0c/Li6
N dv3aA
00°02s's$ 00000°00€¥5°000000°66€Y €¥0°S00L 9lv1l08 66¥0%¢C L - SONIATING NMOL 11V 304 ONIYOLINOWN WHVY VY
ajeq 2910AU| # Jopuap uonduasaqg
Junowy uno9oy 8010AU| "ON Od ALD aWeN JWay Jopusp
¥202-£202 :ies) |edsld
£€202/50/01 0Ll ‘JsquinN ydjeg Joydnop

Bunsi j1e3eqg 18yonop

uo}jog Jo UMo |



vl :obed 22'1'€202 [le1oQIayoNoAdyIdl  poday Wd L0'8L:Z  €202//2/60 :Paluld

“Jado Buipiing UMo] - SUOREDIUNWWOYD £c0oc/elLie
65°92% 00000°00€55°000000°66EY €¥0'S00 L L¥8€/./¥¥66 (O G././4# 1d3Ad SHHVd - INOHJI 1AL NMOL
1adQ Buipjing umo| - suonesiunwwon €c0c/6l/6
10°0¥$ 00000°00€55°000000°66EY €¥0°'S001 LY8€/L.YY66 0o 1 280L# 1d3d 23 - AINOHJIT3L NMOL
:dnoig yosyn
SSINIHIM NOZIY3IA
00'650'9% -[eJOL Jopusp
00650'9% ‘[eJo 1 8210AU|/Od
0 #3994D
81eqoId - SIPBHUOD JAYI0 €ecoc/el/e
31vd0dd
00°650'9% 00000°0L0SS°000000°LOLY L¥0'S00 L 202 Ad 01 ¥2/0€/9-€2/1/L FYVYHS LSOOI LH4N0D I1vd0odd
:dnoio ¥oayH
"HILSIHONVIN 40 NMOL
05°.2% -|ejoL JOpuUsA
05°.2% :|e}01 8210AU|/Od
0 #3%8yd
1q17 - sjeusiey Aeigiy €coc/LLie
g€c/ie/ol
05°'L$ 00000°'00%95°000000°L0SY ' G¥0°S00 L NYHL M3IN3Y 01 334 ONISS3O0Hd IDIOANI
1q17 - s|eusiepy Aieigr €coe/L L6
€c/ieol
00'92$ 00000°'00%95°000000° L0SY'S0°G00 ) NYHL M3IN3Y 01l €2/12/0L HONOYHL NOILdIHOSEaNS Y3dVYdSMAN
:dnoio yoayn
39079 NOLSOd IHL
1/89¢€$ J|EJOL JOpUBA
12'89¢$ -[Bj013210AU|/Od
0 #393UD
saiddng-juels Ayaosuuo) Ayunwwo) €¢0¢/9/6
12°89¢$ G60S0°00195°000000°0L6¥'610°228¢C 99¥¢0cee gceove | 8ja10u0d Beg/ouqe; Jayi4
:dnoig) ¥o9yn
ONI S3SIUAYTLNT 1TOHVL
aje 9910AU| # Jopuap uonduoseq
unowy 1UN02oY S210AU| "'ON Od ALD SWEN JWaY JOPUap
¥202-€20C -1ed\ |edsiy
£202/50/01 201} :IQUINN ydjeg Joyanop Bunsi j1ejeq J9yonop

uo}jog JO UMo |



Sl :abed (AR HANA IIe}2IaUINOAdYAd!  ‘poday Nd 10:8L:2 €202/.2/60 -psjuld
09'€9% ‘|ejo Jopusp
09'c9% :|e}01 8010AU|/Od
0 #3934D
‘AI8G "Uag - sa|iddng €202/9/6
410
08°'1€$ 00000°0L095°000000°L2¥¥ +¥0°G00L HOINIS - 825491 0 HILVM
‘M "H - saddng €20¢/9/6
JOVHVYD
08'L¢$ 00000°'01L095°000000°€0EY €#0°G00 L NM\L - GZ2S¥91L 0 H3LVM
:dnolg yoayn
69111 071 d0LNAIdLSId DONIFdS FOVTIIA
£9'28v$ :[eJOL Jopusp
£1'62¢$ :|ejo18010AU|/Od
0 ‘#3934
"WWoY) ail4 - SUOKEIIUNWWOoD €2c0c/L/6
00.,$ 00000°00€55°000000°€02¥'20°G001 CEBBCLEYE6 §160¥¢C IOHVHO 31V1 - ANOHd 71130 1d43d IHid
‘WWOoY a1 - SUOKEDIUNWWOD €202/./6
(YavNvo)
V.1vad ® SIOVSSIN ‘STLNNIN TYNOILYNYILNI
1G°20C$ 00000°00€55°000000°€0Z¥ 20°'S001L CE66CLEVE6 S160¥¢C - 3ANOHd 1130 1d3a 3d1d4 €202 LSNONV
‘wwo) all4 - suojesunWWon €20¢c/L/6
S334 + SIOYVHI ATHLNONW
296L1$ 00000°'00€55°000000°€0ZY 20°'G00) 2E66C.LEVE6 S1S0¥e JYVYANVLS - INOHd 71130 1d3ad 3did €202 LSNoONY
:dnoig ¥oayH
0G°¢SLS ‘|B}OL3210AU|/Od
0 ‘#398YD
"NaS "Uag - auoyds|a L €202/6L/6
€C8lL$ 00000°00€55°000000°L2v¥ ¥¥#0°S001) L¥8ELLYY66 0 €8EG# C IANIT - INOHJ ¥10 HOIN3S
"N “Usg - suoydaja €¢0¢/61/6
€C8L$ 00000°00£55°000000°L2¥¥ +¥#0°S001L LV8EL.LYY66 0 0€LL# L IANIT- INOHd Y10 HOIN3S
4adQ buipjing umo] - suojesjunwwoy €20c/6l/6
y¥'06$ 00000°00£55°000000°66EY €¥0°S00 L L¥8€//¥v66 0 98€C# L H3AdNY NIf - INOHJIT3L NMOL
aje( a010AU| # lopuap, uonduoseq
junowy JUN022Y 8010AU| "'ON Od ALD aWeN JIWway Jopusp
¥202-€20C :1es) |edsid
£€202/50/01 L0LL isquinp yojeq J8aydnop

Bunsi |1e3aqg 19yonop

uojjog Jo umo|



:abed

9l c¢c'l'eeoe IIB}2QJ3YoNOAdYId)  :Hoday Nd L0:8lL:¢ €¢0¢/L2/60 :p3juld
JadQ Buipjing umo] - saiiddng g€ecoe/Le/e
[A WA IR 00000°00195°000000°'66EY €+0°S00 L €lyeol 6¢s0ve | HIMON DVIOS HO4 HOLNTO Old
:dnois ¥28yn
€1°G501$ ‘lejo 1 8210AUl/Od
0 #X93YyD
“1adQ Buipjing umo] - saiddng €20¢/¢e/6
LT61% 00000°00195°000000°66€Y €¥0°S00L 8/vE9l 0o ! H3IMON OVIS HO4 17139
“1adQ Buipjing umo] - salddng €¢0¢/L2/6
ov'98$ 00000°00195°000000°66€F €70°S00L 6¥¥E9L 01l H3IMOW DVYIS HO4 S1134
:dnolg yo9uH
Leovel "“ONI ‘SNOS % SSNA¥d "H'M
¥€'620'1$ ‘|ejo1 Jopusp
¥€°620'v$ ‘|E}01 8010AUI/Od
0 #%99UD
uonen[eag-ay - sanljiger] J9Yy0 g€coc/el/e
(0L Lv¥$) 00000°'0%252"000000° L 06%'6%0°096¢C 887601 [A%°10) 7NN AOVNIVLIY %01}
uonen|eA3-ay - selliiqel] Jaylo €coc/cLie
LS LYLS 00000°0%252°000000 L 06 670°096C 88601 cesove L €20Z ONY ISNIdXT B TINAVHL
uonenjend-ay - sanligel] JaYi0 €20c/clie
S¥'296$ 00000°'0%252°000000° L 06¥'6¥0°0962 88/601 zesove L €202 ONY AYLN3 VLiva
uoljen|en3-ay - sanlliqer] JBYI0 €coerel/e
89°006$ 00000°0%252°000000° L 06t'6¥0°096C 887601 cesove L €202 ONV LSI7? IHUNSYAN TVIOHIWNOD
uonenjen3-ay - saniqel] Jayio £2¢0¢/CLI6
9T'ees LS 00000°0%£52°000000° L 06% 610°096C 887601 zesove L €202 9NV NOILYNTIVA TVIDHINWNOD
uoljen|en3-ay - saniliqelT JaUI0 €20z/ZLI6
€5°0LP$ 00000°0¥/252°000000° L 06¥"6¥0° 0962 887601 cesove L €202 ONV LSI7 % IYNSVYAN TVILNIAISTY
uopenjen3-ay - sanlliqel] Jsyio €c0c/eLie
GG'ELVS 00000'0%252°000000° L 06%'6¥0°0962 887601 zesove L €202 ONY NOISINYIdNS LO3rodd
:dnous) ¥28y9
9950v.L SNOILNTOS LNIFNWNHIAOD NOISIA
aje( 8910AU| # lopuap uonduosaq
junowy JUNo22Y 32J0AU| "ON Od ALD SWEN Jway Jopusp
¥202-€202 :1ea) |edsld
€202/50/01 0L} 8quinp yojegq 18ydnop

Bunsi |1e3aq 49Yyanop

uojjog JO UMO |



Ll

:abed

ce'L'ecoe IBY9QIaYONOAdYIdI  Hoday Nd 10:8lL¢ €¢0¢/.2/60 -pajuld
:dnoig) ¥oayn
6250V 071 'SIVIMILYIN WYHANIM
ov'LvES ‘|EJOL Jopusp
0¥ Lve$ ‘[EJO13210AUI/Od
0 ‘#3934D
‘MH - sa1ddng g swiojun £20¢/0¢/8
0,°89% 00000°0£695°000000 €0EY €¥0°G00 L 99%91G 0 SINHOLINN
'M'H - saiiddng 3 suuopun €coc/ee/8
0,°89% 00000°0€695°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L 679505 0 1 SINJO4INN
‘MH - saiddng =g suuoyun €202/91/8
0,°89% 00000°0€695°000000°€0EY €#0'S00L 8Y9v61 0 SINHOLINN
JadQ Buipjing umo] - saliddng €20¢/6/8
8L91$ 00000°00195°000000°'66€t €#0°S00L £90v8Y 0o S13d4vO
‘M'H - saljddng g swuoyun £€20¢/6/8
98°09% 00000°0€695°000000°€0EY €F0'S00L £90v8Y 0o I SINHO4INN
‘MH - saiddng g suoyun €¢0c/c/8
9C't9% 00000°0£695°000000°€0EY €¥0°S00L Vivvly 0 I SINHO4INN
:dnolg yoayn
¥60LL "ONI ‘AYANNYT AVM JLIHM
00°05¥$ ‘|EJOL JOpusp
00°0Sv$ ‘[EJOL3210AU/Od
0 #393yd
'AM3S “J8Y - “[eroway asnjey £20¢/1/6
00°05¥$ 00000°L0L¥S°000000°50¥8 ¥80°G00L  888260NLTIANI evsove | HSNYg
:dnolig yoayn
OT1 IMVYN3A FHVYI3IM
SL'ELPS ‘|ejo] Jopuap
[AASI % ‘|e}O1 8210AUI/Od
0 #X93yD
8jeq 82I0AU| # J0pUSA uonduossaqg
unowy JUN0292Y 80I0AU| "ON Od AD BWEeN Jway Jopusy
Y202-€202 :IedA |edsiq
€202/S0/01 L0L} :JequinN yajeq J8Yydnop

BunsiT j1e3oQg 419yonop

uojjog Jo umo |



8l :abed

ze'1'ee0e lejoQIayoNoAdids  :poday Nd L0:8L:iT  €202/.2/60 :pajuld
yoday jo pug
9e'¥65'8Z1$ ‘|ejo) puel
26°108% ‘|ejo Jopuap
26°108% ‘[e}0] 82I0AUI/Od
0 #308UD
sa)ddng-juel Ayaosuuo) Aunwwod €20¢/9¢/8
26°108% S§6050°00195°000000°0L6%'6¥0°228¢C ¥56.0¢C olvove L 103rodd AVMMIVM HO4 INOLS HONI ¥/€ AIHSYM
ajeq 8210AU| # J0puap uonduosaqg
junowy Junodoy 99l0AU| ‘ON Od ALD SWEN JIWaY Jopusp
¥202-€202 :JedA |edsid
€202/S0/01 0Ll :I_3qunN yodjeg JayonoA

Bunsi |1e3ag 18yonop

uojjog JO umo |



%10°16 55°780°9LS S | €TT'998°E S| LL'8Y6°6LS S | 809 LOE S| 00'T6L'TLE9 S| 00°T6LCEVY'9 S sjelol
%599°66 €LTETC S - S| ELTETT S| LT'TC9'86S S | 00'¥S2°009 S | 00¥St'TLS S uond3||0) a1se\
%€6'88 [4R3Y4 S - S| TT'EET S| 88T/8'T S| 0060T'C S| 00°S0T‘C S uolleAlasuo)
%176°96 08'920'6 S = S | 089206 S | 0T'18€'98¢ S | 00°801'S6¢ S | 00°'801'S6C S Ateaqn
%806 69°C9VT S - S | 69°CV9'VT S | TESS8 VYT S | 00'86V'6ST S | 00'86¥'6ST S $9JIAJDS |BID0S / SI01UaS
%T0'L6 (7'€98 S = S| Tr'€98 S | 85¥T0'8T S | 00°8/88¢ S | 00°8/8'8¢ S ulwpy yijeaH aljqnd
%6E'T6 1591269 S - S| TS9TT'69 S | 66TV VEL S | 00'9%79°€08 S | 00°'9%9°€08 S sdQ 3ulp|ing umo] /syJed
%18 0S'€9L'€ S - S| 0S€9L°E S | 05°9€€ S | 00°00T'V S| 00°00T'v S uolssiwwo) 3ulpjing d1|qnd
%1€ 96 L6°€56°9€ S | 00°001 S| L6°ESE'LE S | €0'€91'S96 S| 00/18200T S| 00/I8°C00T S 5122415 pue sAemysiy
%1E 0L LT C9E'Y S - S| LTT9E'Y S | €8°0€€°0T S | 00°€6917T S | 00°€69VT S juswaseue| Aouadiaw]
%0 ¥9 99'GSY'TT S & S| 99°GSY'TT S | vEWYS0C S | 00°000°C€ S | 00°000°CE S [BYSJEA 2414
%LL 96 00°00T S - S | 00°00T S | 00°000°€ S | 00°00T ‘€ S | 00°00T '€ S |0J1U0) [ewluy
%1696 68 ¥6€°L S | TT99v'e S| TT'T98°0T S | 68°€CS'0EC S | 00°S8ETIT S | 00°S8E‘TIT S uolssiwwo) a4
%Cy' V8 8/°895TS S . S | 8£°89S'TS S| TTI8Y'6LL S | 00'0SO‘TEE S | 00'0SO‘TEE S 921|0d
%67 68 80'520'L S - S | 80520, S | ¢6°£85'8S S | 00°€T9'99 S | 00°€T9'S9 S Suond?|g
%8E"EE G9'GGE'T S 5 S | §9'SSET S | 9649 $ | 00°S€0°C S | 00G€TT S Spuefla/spuejul
%C6'76 00°'8T¢ S = S | 00°8T€E S | 00°0v6°S S | 008579 S | 008579 S 2}eqoJd
%EC9L ST /LSS'VE S - S | ST LSS'PE S| SLTv8'0TT S | 00°00Y'SPT S | 00°00%'SYT S douelunsu| Ajadoud
%89°0L S8°08% S = S | S8°081 S| ST'6ST'T S | 00°0¥9'T S | 000v9°T S sjeaddy jo pieog 3ujuoz
%87'€9 v6'TSS'T S| - S | ¥6°TSS'T $190869C $ | 0005V $ 1 000SZy $ 8ujuoz 13 3uluueld
%E0 €6 96'658'TC S - S | 96°658'TC S | ¥0'6/6'T6C S | 00'6€8'ETE S | 00°€S9‘TrE S 9SM pue
%9T 66 LV'T9T'T S = S| LVT9T'T S | €5°£65'9¢T S | 000092°LET S| 00009 LET S J43[) UMO]
%TS'T8 8/'L69°T6T S - S| 84°L69T6T S | CT'8T8' 718 S| 0097S9€0‘T $| 009259€0°T S syjauag a3ul4
%58 76 6°L69Y S - S| ¢6'L69'Y S | 80°0TS98 S | 00'80T'16 S | 00'80Z'16 S 103123]|0) Xe|
%EL’ 66 T¥'89¢ S = S | T¥'89¢ S | 65£55'9¢T S [ 00'976'9€T S| 00CTT'IET S 10ssassy
%8786 00°00S S - S | 00005 S | 00°005'8¢ S | 00°000°6¢ S | 00°000°6¢ S 3unipny
%1€ 96 66'690'TT S = S| 66'690'TT S | T0'9L¥'9TT S | 00°91S‘LET S | 00°9YS LET S uoljelisiulwpy |ejoueuly
%96°66 T0'T S & S|T0T S | 66'86€'C S | 00°00t'C S | 00002 S Soueuld Jo pleog
%9¢€'98 00°€CL L8 S 00°€TL/8 S | 00°€€T'SSS S | 00'9S6'TV9 S | 00'957'80L S uoneJjsiuiupy
pasuadx3 papuadxaun Jueiquiniug 2Juejeg alA dsuadxy 198png 198png paidopy

%

pasinay

€C0CAd




%Y0°16 GS°C80°9/S S | ¢2'998‘S S | LL'8Y6'6LS S | 80'9/'L0€E S| 00°T6LTLE'9 S| 00°T6L'CEY'9 S s|ejo]
%S9°'66 €LTETC S - S| ELTET T S | LT2r9'86S S | 00752009 S | 00 ¥St'TLS S uoi123]|0) 31se/\
%E6°88 T EET S - S| ereee S| 88T/8'T S | 00°S0T‘C S | 00°S0T‘C S UOI1BAIaSUO)
%16'96 089206 S - $ | 08'920'6 S | 0T'T8€'98¢ S | 00'801'S6¢ S | 00°'801'S6T S Aseaqny
%C8 06 69 CY9'vT S - S | 69°C¥9'vT S | T€'S98 VYT S | 00°86%'6ST S | 00°86%'6ST S S92IAISS [B1D0S / SI01UdS
%T0°L6 €98 S . S | Z¥'€98 S | 85'¥10'8C S | 00°8/8'8¢ S | 00°8£8'8T S ulwpy YijesH aljqnd
%6E'16 TS'9TC'69 S - S| 1591269 S | 6v6TV'VEL S | 00'919°€08 S | 00'9%79°€08 S sdQ 3uip|ing umo] /syJed
%TT'8 0S°€9/°E S - S| 05°€9L'E S | 059¢€¢€ S | 00001V S | 00°00T'v S uolssiwwo) 3ulp|ing d1|qnd
%TE96 L6'€56'9€ S | 00001 S| L6°€s€'LE S | €0°€9¥'596 S| 00/T8C00T S| 00/T8TO0T S 129415 pue sAemysiy
%TE 0L LT 79E'Y S - S| LTT9E'Y S | €8°0€€°0T S | 00°€69'VT S | 00°€69VT S Juswazeue|p Adusdisw]
%0T' 179 99°'SSY'TT S = S | 99°sSv'TT S | ¥E¥YS0T S | 00°000°CE S | 00°000°CE S |eysJen aJi4
%LL 96 00°00T S - S | 00001 S | 00°000°€ S | 00°00T°E S | 00°00T‘E S [0J1U0) [BWIUY
%Y6°'96 68'V6€‘L S | 2z99v'e S| TT'198°0T S | 68°€7S'0€T S | 00°S8€ TV S | 00°S8E‘TYT S uolssiwwo) aJi4
%V’ v3 8/°89STS S - S | 8£°895°1S S | CTI8Y'6LT S | 00'0SO'TEE S | 00'0SO‘TEE S 21|04
%6268 80°520'L S - S | 80'520°L S | 26°£85'8S S | 00°€T9'S9 S | 00°€T9'S9 S suono9|3
%8E'EE G9'GSET S = S | §9'55€T S | S€'6/9 S | 00°5€0°C S | 00°GETT S Spue[Idp/spuejul
%6176 00°8T¢€ S - S | 00'8TE S | 00°0v6'S S | 008579 S | 008529 S 91eqo.d
%ET 9L ST /SS'VE S - S | sz /SS'vE S| SLev8'0TT S | 00°00%'SPT S | 00°00¥'S¥T S foueunsu| Ajsadoud
%89°0/ G8'08Y S = S | 98°08% S| ST'6ST'T S | 00°0%9°T S | 00°0¥9°T S s|eaddy jo pseog 3uiuoz
%81 €9 ¥6'TSST S - S| ¥6'TSST S | 90869 S | 00005y S | 000ST'Y S 3uluoz i uluue|d
%E0'E6 96'658'T¢ S - S| 96°6598°TC S| ¥0'6/6'16C S | 00°6€8°CTE S | 00°€S9‘CvE S 9sN pue
%9166 LV'T9T'T S = S| LVT9TT S | €9°£6G9¢€T S| 000092°L€T S| 00009L°LET S A49]) umo |
%TS'T8 8/'L69T6T S - S| 84 L69'T6T S | zz8e8'vy8 S | 009ZS'9€0'T S| 009ZS9E0'T S s}ijauag asull4
%G8'¥6 76°L69't S - S| 6169V S | 80°0T598 S | 00°802'T6 S | 00'80Z'16 S 10129)|0D xe|
%EL 66 T¥'89¢€ S - S | T¥'89¢€ S | 6G°£SS'9¢€T S | 00°976'9¢T S| 00CTT'1ET S 10553sSY
%87°86 00°00S S - S | 00°00S S | 00°005'82 S | 00°000°62 S | 00°000°62 S 3unipny
%1€°G6 66'690'TT S - S| 66'690°TT S | T0'9/¥'92T S | 00'9%S LET S | 00°915°LET S uoljeJisiulwpy |elpueuld
%9666 10T S - S|10T S | 66'86€'C S | 00700t S | 00°00Z‘C S 9dueul jo pieog
%9€°98 00°€7L'L8 S 00°€C. L8 S | 00°€€T'SSS S | 00°956T¥9 S | 00°95Z°80L S uohessiuiwpy
pasuadx3 papuadxaun 2iueiquiniul aJuejeg alA 9suadx3y 193png 198png paidopy

%

pasinay

€C0CAd




%TT'00T %TIT°00T %86°66 %8E°TOT %62'T0T %ETTOT
€202°0€°9 €20Z'TIE'S €202°0E'Y €20C°IE'E €202'8T°C €20CIET
%S TOT %0T"T0T %26°00T %€9°'66 % 66 %ET'98
TT0TTIETT TT0T0E'TT Z20T'TE0T Z20T°0E'6 TT0T'IE'S 0T IE L
v20T'0€'9 v20T'1E'S v20T0E'Y vZ0TTE'E ¥202°8T°C vZOTTIE'T
%66°66 %EL'08
€20 TETT €20T°0E°TT €202'TE0T €206 €207'TIE'S €202'TE'L
AALDATI0D AATT HA LNITIND UVAA SNOIATId
%E8L6 v0'LbS'862°6T $ - $ (bS'zss‘vs) $ (2ev992?) $ 06°E9LSSE'6T $  00°L6L'9ZL'6T $ V101
%E0'SH 69'V9LvT $ : $ 6919LVC $ 00°000°SS S $334 %9 1STYILNI
%Z6'T9 8L TV 9y $ (55°0007) ¢ (ET6ZET) $ 9STLLGY $ 00°000'S. $ SYV3IA HOIYd
%1186 LS'6EE'LTT6T $ SS'000CT $ (vS'zssvs) $ (60°SEE‘T) ¢ S997'I8T6T ¢ 00°L6L96S6T $ 1V.LOL aNs
%000 - N e s - $ - $ 00°000°S6T $ AT AN'ddNS
%TE 06 TEVOSYIOT  $ E€SYI'T S ($9'961) $ (PL€LT'T)  $ LTBIT'STOT  § 00 TVLL8L'T $  3F1DIHIA HOLOW
%66°66 ST'GERCI9LT § TT'SS8 S (06'sS0'PS) S (S€'19) S 8€/60999/T S 00'9S0'VI9“LT S AAITHA LNI¥YNI
LA5aAnd ¥Z A4 €TIE8 smeysuel], SINAWAVd  SANNATH aLx
AaLdATIOD NOLLDATIOD LAN aaNINLAY SNOLLDATIO) aiLdoav
AOVLNADUAd
€TIE'8

JOLIATIOD XV.L



%TT'00T %TT'00T %86°'66 %8E TOT %62'TO0T %EC'TOT

€202°0€°9 €20T°1IE'S £20T°0EY €207 TIEE €207°8C¢C €20TIET

%ST'TOT %0T'T0T %26°00T %€9°'66 %bT 66 %ET'98

Z20TIETT TL0TOETT 20T IE0T T20T'0E'6 T20T'1IE'8 T20TIE L

¥202'0€°9 YZ0T'IE'S v20Z'0E'Y Y20 IE'E v202'8T'C YZ0T'IET

%EL'08
€20T'IETT €20T°0€'TT €20T'TE0T €2°0€°6 €20C'TE'S €20TTE L
AALIATIOD AATT YA LNAIIND AVAA SNOIATHd

%06°LL 19°L2V'L9E'ST $ - $ (ps'essvs) ¢ - $ ST'086‘TTV'ST $  00°L6L'9TL'6T $ 1vioL
%8E'8 61°609't $ - $ 61609 $  00°000'SS S S334 9 LSIYILNI
%0LLT V9'SLTET $ Y9'SLT'ET $  00°000'SL $ SYVIA HOIYd
%EEBL 8T'ZVS'6VE'ST $ - $ (vs'zssvs) ¢ - $ WYe0vOV'ST 00°L6L'96S'6T $ V101 9ns
%00°0 - e ' e I $  00°000S6T $ AT AW'ddNS
%LT'E9 80°6SC'6CT'T S (79°967) S . S TLSSL'6TIT S 00'TVLL8L'T S 3FIIIHINA YOLOW
%EL°08 0T'€8702CYT (06'S50'7S) $ 00'6EEVLZYT S 009SOVT9LT $  AAITHA LNINYND
LI9and ¥Z Ad STUEIL sidysuel], SLNAWAVd  SANNJITY arx

ad1dITI0) NOLLDATIOD LAN QEANINLAY SNOLLDATIO0D aiLdoav

A9V.INADYA

€TIEL

d0LIITTI0D XV.L



pa31adpnquapun aq pjnod ey} Juswnedaqg

%LV TT %EETT %€ES 0T %61°9C 75'¢88'796'v  $ | 8L'OVI'VBE  $ | TE'ECOLYE'S $ | 89'LSO'LLE'T $ | 00180veL9 $ | 00°T8O'vZL9  $ s|eloL
%CE VT %CL'8 %T9'ET %LS' €T 8T ¥8%'9SY S | 00°0S¥ S | 8T'7€6'951 S | z8's6Z'0vT S | 00°0€2'L6S S | 00°0€2'L65 5 uo1393||0D 2158\
%9101 %8V %CY'ET %00°6T 00'S0L'T S = S | 00°S0L‘T S | 0000% S | 00'S0T‘C S | 00°S0T‘C S UOI1BAI35UOD

%00°0 00 P¥T'TT S - S| 00VYT'TT S - S| 00vPTTT S| 00vPT'TT S uoealoay
%LS°0T %99 7T %E6°0C %S6'7E 88°090°00¢ S | 59°€T9°8T S | €5v£9'8TC S | £'988'88 S | 00'T9S'L0€E S | 00°195'20¢€ S Ateaqn
%ES0T %ST'0T %61 8T %88°ST €0'S90°0€T S | 00°099°L S| eoses'LeT S| L6EbL'LE S | 00°69¥'SLT S | 00°69%'SLT S S9IAISS |B120S / SI0IUSS

%00°0 00°009 S - S | 007009 S - S | 00°009 S | 007009 S UOISSIWWOD ,SURIDISA
%L6'CT %LTET %S9 %S9°¥C 66'90V'TC S - S | 66'90%'1C $ | T0'200L S | 00°60¥'8C S | 00°60%'82 S ulwpy yijeaH aijqnd
%80°ET %SETT %6C'TT %E6'TT OT'I8TLE9 S | 86'8TETC S | 80°005'859 S | 26'812'89T S | 00°6T2'928 S | 00°6TL'928 S sdQ 3uipjing umo] /s)ed
%00°0 %00°0 %€9'T %00°'0 00°00T‘¥ S - S | 0000T'y S - S | 00°00T'Y S | 00°00T'Y S uoissiwwo) 3ulp|ing 21jqnd
%v6°LT %TE 8T %L9°€E %YEVE L8 TYT'TOL S| £9'8/0°LvT S| ¥S0TT'8Y6 S | 9v'9rS'6TT S [ 00/£94790'T S| 00£9.490'T S S$19343S pue shemysiH
%89'T1T %E0CT %9597 %TS'0T 0786 S = S | vO'v¥8'6 S | 96'SST'T S | 00°000°TT S | 00°000°TT S juswageue|y Aduadiswg
%S0'S %S1°C %90°C %C8'VT 95°/S2'1T S| s8szL S| 1v'es6'LT S | 657910 S | 00000°CE S | 00°000°2E S |eysieln 3414
%00°00T %000 %L1 96 %00°00T = S - S - S | 00°0059 S | 00°0059 s | 00°005‘9 S [043uU0) |eWUY
%96 6T %9.°TC %ED"ST %E6'BE T8'9%SLST S| LT8LY'SY $ | 80°570°€02 S | 26'SS6'YS S | 00'T86°LST S | 00°T86°/SC S UOISSIWWO)) 314
%00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 00°00E‘TTE S 2 S | 00°00€‘TTE S - S | 00°00€TTE S | 00°00€TTE S 21|04
%06°61 %98°ST %S6°€C %L6'9 89'660°€9 S | 0000521 S | 89'6v€v9 S | TE08Y'E S | 00°0€8°29 S | 00°0€8°29 S Suo1129|3

%00°0 00°00S'C S - S | 00°005C S - S | 000005 S | 0070052 S juawdoaA3Q d1wou0d3
%9E"€ %00'€ %£8°9 %EY"L 00°090°C S = S | 000090C S | 00°SLT $ | 00°S€T'T S | 00°SET'T S spuejiapm/spueju|
%00°'0 %00'0 %00°0 %00°0 00'85¢'L S - S | 00°852'L S - S | oo8sz’L S | 00'85¢'L S 91eqold
%S0'TE %S8°LT %69°6T %80°LT 95°9T0'ETT $ | 00°000°T S | 95°'920'vTT S | vELE'OY S | 00°000°SST S | 00°000°SST S doueinsu| Apadold
%000 %0T'T %00°'0 %09'8 ST'80S'T S - S | ST'80S'T S| S8TYT $ | 00°059°T S | 00059°'T S sjeaddy jo pseog 8ujuoz
%ST'T %TE'E %008 %YE'8 9T'#S8'E S ~ S| 9T'¥S8'E S | ¥805€ S | 00°S0Z'y S | 00's0z'y S 3ujuoz g Bujuue|d
%E8°0¢ %C9°LT %EL 8T %YL 6T SO'LTT'VLT S | 00 EvL'TE S | 50°098°S0€ S | §6'9/6°08 $ | 00°2€898¢ S | 00°££8'98¢ S asn pue]
%1681 %76'8T %L1 %EL'6T 69'/8€'66 $ | 00°0ST'L S | 69°£€5'90T S | Tez06'vE S | 00°0PP'THT S | 00°0VY THT S Y43]D umo]
%S VT %CE'TT %8Y'€T %CE 6T 'SL0LSL S = S | tr'SL0'LSL S | 85'¥20VTIE S | 00°00T‘TZ0'T S| 0000T'TLOT S s}ljouag aduli
%v9° T %YTLT %ST'HT %EE'ET TETLLTUL S = s|TeTLL'TL S | 69°0vTCe S| 00ZT6v6 S | 002T6'Y6 S 10303||0) xe |
%S8°ET %SL'ET %66'8 %6¥'2C 68'99L'vCT S | 000TY S | 68'941T'STT S| TTv6LSE $ | 00'TL6'09T S | 00'T£609T S 1ossassy
%00°0 %00°'0 %000 %00°'0 00°000°SH S - S | 00°000'St S 5 S | 00°000'St $ | 00°000°St S unipny
%LEET %90°ET %€E8'CT %ST¥C S6'€97'78T $ | 00000 S | 56'€96'78T S | SOvvELS $ | 00'80€‘0t S | 00°80€‘0VT S uoneJIsiuiWpY [epueuly
%00°0 %SG0°€E %TT'E %80 00°0S€T S - $ | 00°05€C S | 00°00T S | 00°0SP'T S | 000S¥'T S 9dueuld jo pieog
%86'TT %Y9°CT %C0'TT %E9TT 22°900Z7S S | 9€'29S S | 85°895°T¥S S | erTE6’LST S | 00°005‘002 $ | 00°005°00Z S uoijesisiuiwpy

TCAd CCAd €CAd pasuadxy papuadxaun dueiqundul ?duejeg dlA asuadx3y 198png 193png paidopy

%

pasinay

€202 ‘0€ 19qwa1das $Z0ZA4




